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CHESAPEAKE TREATMENT CENTERS, INC.

New Directions Program
9700 Old Harford Rd.

Baltimore, MD 21234
410-663-8500

FAX 410-663-0805

December 22, 2015

Kevin McDonald

Chief

Certificate of Need Division
Maryland Health Care Commission
4160 Patterson Avenue

Baltimore, Maryland 21215

Dear Mr. McDonald:

Chesapeake Treatment Centers, Inc. is pleased to submit a Certificate of Need for an
urgently needed service for Department of Juvenile Services youth. We thank you for the
opportunity to enhance our existing service programs.

Attached please find six copies of an application for certificate of need from Chesapeake
Treatment Center, Inc, (CTC). CTC filed a letter of modified letter of intent for this

© project on June 25, 2015.

Digital copies of the application in Word and .pdf format will be submitted by email.
Sincerely,

Vi e,

Patricia Bixler
Administrator
Chesapeake Treatment Centers, Inc. d/b/a New Directions

PROVIDING A CONTINUUM OF MENTAL HEALTH CARE FOR CHILDREN AND ADOLESCENTS
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INSTRUCTIONS: GENERIC APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATE OF NEED (CON)

Hote: Specific CON appiication forms axist for hosp
and hospice projects. This Torm 8 o be used for any olher

ALL APPLICATIONS MUST FOLLOW THE FORMATTING REQUIREMENTS DESCRIBED
IMMEDIATELY BELOW. NOT FOLLOWING THESE FORMATTING INSTRUCTIONS WILL
RESULT IN THE APPLICATION BEING RETURNED.

Required Format:

Table of Contents. The application must include a Table of Contents referencing the location of

~application materials. Each section in the hard copy submission should be separated with
tabbed dividers. Any exhibits, attachments, etc. should be similarly tabbed, and pages within
each should be numbered independently and consecutively. The Table of Contents must
include:

* Responses to PARTS |, Il lll, and IV of the this application form

 Responses to PART IV must include responses to the standards in the State
Health Plan chapter that apply to the project being proposed..
o All Applicants must respond to the Review Criteria listed at 10.24.01.08G(3)(b)
through 10.24.01.08G(3)(f) as detailed in the application form.

s Identification of each Attachment, Exhibit, or Supplement

Application pages must be consecutively numbered at the bottom of each page. Exhibits
attached to subsequent correspondence during the completeness review process shall use a
consecutive numbering scheme, continuing the sequencing from the original application. (For
exampie, if the last exhibit in the application is Exhibit 5, any exhibits used in subsequent
responses should begin with Exhibit 8. However, a replacement exhibit that merely replaces an



exhibit to the application should have the same number as the exhibit it is replacing, noted as a
replacement.

SUBMISSION FORMATS:

We require submission of application materials and the applicant’s responses to completeness
gquestions in three forms: hard copy; searchable PDF; and in Microsoft Word.

¢ Hard copy: Applicants must submit six (6) hard copies of the application to:
Ruby Potter
Health Facilities Coordinator
Maryland Health Care Commission
4160 Patterson Avenue
Baitimore, Maryland 21215

« PDF: Applicants must also submit searchable PDF files of the application, supplements,
attachments, and exhibits. All subsequent correspondence should also be submitted

both by paper copy and as searchable PDFs.

+ Microsoft Word: Responses to the questions in the application and the applicant's
responses to completeness questions should alsc be electronically submitted in Word.
Applicants are strongly encouraged to submit any spreadsheets or other files used to
create the original tables (the native format). This will expedite the review process.

Applicants are strongly encouraged to submit any spreadsheets or other files used to create the
original tables (the native format). This will expedite the review process.

PDFs and spreadsheets should be submitted to ruby.potter@marviand.gov and
kevin mcdonald@maryiand.gov.

Note that there are certain actions that may be taken regarding either a health care
facility or an entity that does not meet the definition of a health care facility where CON
review and approval are not required. Most such instances are found in the
Commission’s procedural regulations at COMAR 10.24.01.03, .04, and .05. Instances
listed in those regulations require the submission of specified information to the
Commission and may require approval by the full Commission. Contact CON staff at
(410) 764-3276 for more information.

A pre-application conference will be scheduled by Commission Staff to cover this and other
topics. Applicants are encouraged to contact Staff with any questions regarding an application.

L PDFs may be created by saving the original document directly to PDF on a computer or by using advanced scanning technology



PART | - PROJECT IDENTIFICATION AND GENERAL INFORMATION

1. FACILITY

Name of Facility: Chesapeake Treatment Centers, Inc.
dibia New Dirgctions and The Right Moves

Address:
§700 Old Harford Rd. Hallimore 21234 Baltimore
Street City Zip County

2. Name of Owner Fiorida invesiment Group, LP

xIf Owner is a Corporation, Partnership, or Limited Liability Company, attach a description
of the ownership structure identifying all individuals that have or will have at least a 5%
ownership share in the applicant and any related parent entities. Attach a chart that
completely delineates this ownership structure.

3. APPLICANT. if the application has a co-applicant, provide the following information in
an attachment.

Legal Name of Project Applicant (Licensee or Proposed Licensee): Chesapeake Treatment

Centers, Inc.
I
Address:
3800 Frederick Ave | Baltimore 21229 RS Ball
Street City Zip State County
Telephone: 4410 863 8500

4. NAME OF LICENSEE OR PROPOSED LICENSEE, if different from the applicant:

MNi&




5. LEGAL STRUCTURE OF APPLICANT (and LICENSEE, if different from applicant).

Check I or filt in applicable information below and attach an organizational chart
showing the owners of applicant (and licensee, if different).

A.  Governmental ]

B. Corporation
(1) Non-profit
(2) For-profit
(3) Close

X [

State & Date of Incorporation

]

C. Partnership
General
Limited
Limited Liability Partnership
Limited Liability Limited
Partnership
Other (Specify):
D. Limited Liability Company
E.  Other (Specify):

O OO

[l

To be formed: ]
Existing: ]

6. PERSON(S) TO WHOM QUESTIONS REGARDING THIS APPLICATION SHOULD BE
DIRECTED :

A. Lead or primary contact:
Name and Title: Patricia Bixler, Administrator

Company Name  Chesapeake Treatment Centers, Inc. d/bl/a New Directions

Mailing Address:

9760 Old Harford Road Baltimore 21234 MD
Street City Zip State

Telephone: Business Phone: 410 683 8500 Cell: 443 562 4394

E-mail Address (required): phixler@ctemd.net



Fax: 470 663 0805

If company name
is different than
applicant briefly
describe the
relationship

B. Additionai or alternate contact:

Name and Title: Richard Mchlee, Esq., Attorney for CTC

Company Name

Mailing Address:
6% Prince George’s Ave

Tacoma Park

20912 MD

Street

Telephone: 410 703 5046
E-mail Address (required): rmcales@gmail.com

Fax:

If company name
is different than
applicant briefly
describe the
relationship

City

Zip

State

7. TYPE OF PROJECT

The following list includes all project categories that require a CON pursuant to

COMAR 10.24.01.02(A). Please mark all that apply in the list below.

If approved, this CON would result in (check as many as apply):

(1) A new health care facility built, developed, or established

(2) An existing health care facility moved to another site
(3) A change in the bed capacity of a health care facility

{4) A change in the type or scope of any health care service offered

by a health care facility

(5) A health care facility making a capital expenditure that exceeds the

current threshold for capital expenditures found at:

hitp/imhce marviand.govimhec/pages/hicfs/hefs con/documents/con _capital threshold 20140301 . pdf

8. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

X0

[

A. Executive Summary of the Project: The purpose of this BRIEF executive summary
is to convey to the reader a holistic understanding of the proposed project: what it is,



why you need to do it, and what it will cost. A one-page response will suffice. Please
include:

(M Brief Description of the project — what the applicant proposes to do

(2) Rationale for the project — the need and/or business case for the
proposed project

(3) Cost — the total cost of implementing the proposed project

| Please see attached 8.A. Executive Summary of the Project

B. Comprehensive Project Description: The description should include details
regarding:
{1 Construction, renovation, and demolition plans
) Changes in square footage of departments and units
) Physical plant or location changes
(4) Changes to affected services following completion of the project
) Outline the project schedule.

| Please see attached 8 B. Comprehensive Project Description

9. Current Capacity and Proposed Changes:

Currently Units {o be Total Units if
Unit Description Licensed/ Added or Project is
Service Certified Reduced Approved
ICF-MR Beds /
ICF-C/D Beds /
Residential Treatment | Beds 28 128 8 beds to be 29
transferred to
new service
Ambulatory Surgery Operating Rooms
Procedure Rooms
Home Health Agency | Counties /
Hospice Program Counties /
Other (Specify)
TOTAL 29 8 beds to be 29
transferrad to
new service

10. Identify any community based services that are or will be offered at the facility and explain
how each one will be affected by the project.

NIA




11.

REQUIRED APPROVALS AND SITE CONTROL

A
B.

Site size: ____ 200 acres {Charles H. Hickey School)
Have all necessary State and local land use and environmental approvals,
including zoning and site plan, for the project as proposed been obtained?

YES_x

NO (If NO, describe below the current status and fimetable

for receiving each of the necessary approvals.)

Form of Site Control (Respond to the one that applies. If more than one,

explain.):
(1) Owned by:  Sisgle of Marviand
(2) Options to purchase held by:
Please provide a copy of the purchase option as an attachment.
(3) Land Lease held by:
Please provide a copy of the land lease as an attachment.
(4) Option to lease held by:
Please provide a copy of the option to lease as an attachment.
(5) Other: Title to site is held by the State of Maryland

Explain and provide legal documents as an attachment.



12. PROJECT SCHEDULE

(INSTRUCTION: IN COMPLETING THE APPLICABLE OF ITEMS 10, 11 or 12, PLEASE
CONSULT THE PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENT TARGET DATES SET FORTH IN
COMMISSION REGULATIONS, COMAR 10.24.01.12)

For new construction or renovation projects.
Project Implementation Target Dates

A Obligation of Capital Expenditure ___MN/A, months from approval date.

B. Beginning Construction months from capital obligation.
C. Pre-Licensure/First Use months from capital obligation.
D. Full Utilization months from first use.

For projects not involving construction or renovations.
Project Implementation Target Dates

A Obligation or expenditure of 51% of Capital Expenditure ____ 1 months from
CON approval date.

B. Pre-Licensure/First Use 2 months from capital obligation.

C. Fuli Utilization 2 months from first use.

For projects not involving capital expenditures.
Project Implementation Target Dates

A Obligation or expenditure of 51% Project Budget months from CON
approval date.

B. Pre-Licensure/First Use months from CON approval.

C. Full Utilization months from first use.

13. PROJECT DRAWINGS

Projects involving new construction and/or renovations should include scalable schematic
drawings of the facility at least a 1/16” scale. Drawings should be completely legible and
include dates.

These drawings should include the following before (existing) and after (proposed), as
applicable:

A. Floor plans for each floor affected with all rooms labeled by purpose or function,
number of beds, location of bath rooms, nursing stations, and any proposed space for
future expansion to be constructed, but not finished at the completion of the project,
labeled as “shell space”.

B. For projects involving new construction and/cr site work a Plot Plan, showing the
"footprint" and location of the facility before and after the project.

C. Specify dimensions and square footage of patient rooms.

Fiease see attachmenis



14.

FEATURES OF PROJECT CONSTRUCTION

A, If the project involves new construction or renovation, complete Tables C and D of
the Hospital CON Application Package

B. Discuss the availability and adequacy of utilities (water, electricity, sewage, natural
gas, etc.) for the proposed project and identify the provider of each utility. Specify the
steps that will be necessary to obtain utilities.

The Chesapeake Treatment Centers, inc. New Directions program is not
charged by the state of Marviand for any of the utilities utilized by the program
at the facility since the facility is on the grounds of the Charles H. Hickey
School.

PART Il - PROJECT BUDGET

Complete Table E of the Hospital CON Application Package

Note: Applicant should include a list of all assumptions and specify what is included in each
budget line, as well as the source of cost estimates and the manner in which all cost estimates
are derived. Explain how the budgeted amount for contingencies was determined and why the
amount budgeted is adequate for the project given the nature of the project and the current
stage of design (i.e., schematic, working drawings, etc.).

PART Il - APPLICANT HISTORY, STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY, AUTHORIZATION
AND RELEASE OF INFORMATION, AND SIGNATURE

1.

3.

List names and addresses of all owners and individuals responsible for the proposed project
and its implementation. ‘

Marc Fishman: 3800 Frederick Avenue, Baltimore MD 21229
Barbara Groves: 3800 Frederick Avenue, Baltimore MD 21228
Susan Liedlich: 3800 Frederick Avenue, Baltimore MD 21228
Patricia Bixler 8700 Old Harford Road, Baltimore MD 21234

Are the applicant, owners, or the responsible persons listed in response to Part 1, questions
2,3, 4,7, and 9 above now involved, or have they ever been involved, in the ownership,
development, or management of another health care facility? If yes, provide a listing of
these facilities, including facility name, address, and dates of involvement.

Yes. Maryland Treatment Centers, Inc. from December 18, 1885 to oresent and
Chesapeake Youth Centers, inc. from November 28, 1988 to Seplember 11, 2006, both at
3860 Frederick Avenue, Ballimore MD 21229

Has the Maryland license or certification of the applicant facility, or any of the facilities listed



in response to Question 2, above, been suspended or revoked, or been subject to any
disciplinary action (such as a ban on admissions) in the last 5 years? If yes, provide a
written explanation of the circumstances, including the date(s) of the actions and the
disposition. If the applicant, owners or individuais responsible for implementation of the
Project were not involved with the facility at the time a suspension, revocation, or disciplinary
action took place, indicate in the explanation.

MNo

4. QOther than the licensure or certification actions described in the response to Question 3,
above, has any facility with which any applicant is involved, or has any facility with which
any applicant has in the past been involved (listed in response to Question 2, above)
received inquiries in last from 10 years from any federal or state authority, the Joint
Commission, or other regulatory body regarding possible non-compliance with any state,
federal, or Joint Commission requirements for the provision of, the quality of, or the payment
for health care services that have resulted in actions leading to the possibility of penalties,
admission bans, probationary status, or other sanctions at the applicant facility or at any
facility listed in response to Question 27 If yes, provide for each such instance, copies of
any settlement reached, proposed findings or final findings of non-compliance and related
documentation including reports of non-compliance, responses of the facility, and any final
disposition or conclusions reached by the applicable authority.

Yes, See attachment "Settlement Agreemeant”

5. Have the applicant, owners or responsible individuals listed in response to Part 1, questions
2,3,4,7, and 8, above, ever pled guilty to or been convicted of a criminal offense in any
way connected with the ownership, development or management of the applicant facility or
any of the health care facilities listed in response to Question 2, above? If yes, provide a
written explanation of the circumstances, including as applicable the court, the date(s) of
conviction(s), diversionary disposition(s) of any type, or guilty plea(s).

Mo

One or more persons shall be officially authorized in writing by the applicant to sign for and act
for the applicant for the project which is the subject of this application. Copies of this
authorization shall be attached to the application. The undersigned is the owner(s), or Board-
designated official of the proposed or existing facility.

I hereby declare and affirm under the penalties of perjury that the facts stated in this application
and its attachments are true and correct to the best of my. kriobwledge, mformatm?nd belief.

o
12/18/15 // s »i‘%}yfﬁ“’éci/
Date Slgnatu/ fe of Owner or Board-designated Official
CExecutive Vice-President
‘Position/Title

Barbars Groves
Printed Name

10



PART IV - CONSISTENCY WITH GENERAL REVIEW CRITERIA AT COMAR
10.24.01.08G(3):

INSTRUCTION: Each applicant must respond to all criteria included in COMAR
0.24.01.08G(3), listed below.

An application for a Certificate of Need shall be evaluated according to all relevant State
Health Plan standards and other review criteria.

If a particular standard or criteria is covered in the response to a previous standard or criteria,
the applicant may cite the specific location of those discussions in order to avoid duplication.
When doing so, the applicant should ensure that the previous material directly pertains to the
requirement and to the directions included in this application form. Incomplete responses to any
requirement will result in an information request from Commission Staff to ensure adequacy of
the response, which will prolong the application’s review period.

10.24.01.08G(3)(a). The State Health Plan.

Every applicant must address each applicable standard in the chapter of the State Health Plan
for Facilities and Services?>. Commission staff can help guide applicants to the chapter(s) that
applies to a particular proposal.

Please provide a direct, concise response explaining the project's consistency with each
standard. Some standards require specific documentation (e.g., policies, certifications)
which should be included within the application as an exhibit,

Fiease see Narrative Attachment Pari IV

10.24.01.08G(3)(b). Need.

The Commission shall consider the applicable need analysis in the State Health Plan. If
no State Health Plan need analysis is applicable, the Commission shall consider whether
the applicant has demonstrated unmet needs of the population to be served, and
established that the proposed project meets those needs.

INSTRUCTIONS: Please discuss the need of the population served or to be served by the
Project. See the discussion above under State Health Plan, G(34a)

Responses should include a quantitative analysis that, at a minimum, describes the Project's
expected service area, population size, characteristics, and projected growth. If the relevant
chapter of the State Health Plan includes a need standard or need projection methodology,
please reference/address it in your response. For applications proposing to address the need of
special population groups, please specifically identify those populations that are underserved
and describe how this Project will address their needs.

If the project involves modernization of an existing facility through renovation and/or expansion,

2 [1] Copies of all applicable State Health Plan chapters are available from the Commission and are available on the Commission's
web site here:hitp./imhcc.maryland govimhog/pages/hefe/hols shp/hefs shp

11



provide a detailed explanation of why such modernization is needed by the service area
population. Identify and discuss relevant building or life safely code issues, age of physical
plant issues, or standard of care issues that support the need for the proposed modernization.

Please assure that all sources of information used in the need analysis are identified. List all
assumptions made in the need analysis regarding demand for services, utilization rate(s), and
the relevant population, and provide information supporting the validity of the assumptions.

Complete Tables 1 and/or 2 below, as applies.

[{(INSTRUCTION: Complete Table 1 for the Entire Facility, including the proposed project,
and Table 2 for the proposed project only using the space provided on the following
pages. Only existing facility applicants should complete Table 1. All Applicants should
complete Table 2. Please indicate on the Table if the reporting period is Calendar Year
(CY) or Fiscal Year (FY)]

TABLE 1: STATISTICAL PROJECTIONS - ENTIRE FACILITY —

. RTC-Residents

Two Most Actual Current Projected Years :
Ended Recent Years | Year {ending with first full year at full utilization)
Projected
CY or FY (Circle) | 2014___ [ 2015 2016 |2017___[20___ |20 | 20
1. Admissions
a. ICF-MR
b. RTC-Residents | 19 12 17 25
Day Students
c. ICF-C/D
d. Other (Specify)
e. TOTAL
2. Patient Days
a. ICF-MR
b 8673 6236 6205 9125

.ICF-C/D

9]

d. Other (Specify)

e. TOTAL

12




Table 1 Cont. Two Most Actual Current Projected Years
Ended Recent Years | Year {ending with first full year at full
Projected utilization)
CY or FY (Circle) 2014___|2015___ | 2018 2017 |20___ |20 120
3. Average Length of Stay
a. ICF-MR
b. RTC-Residents | 439 312 365 365
¢c. ICF-C/D
d. Other (Specify)
e. TOTAL
4. Oﬁcubancy Percentage*
a. ICF-MR
b. RTC-Residents | 82% | 59% | 59% 86%
c. ICF-C/D
d. Other (Specify)
e. TOTAL
5. Nthbér of Licensed Beds*
a. ICF-MR
b. RTC-Residents | 29 29 29 29

. ICF-C/D

[$)

d. Other (Specify)

e. TOTAL

. Home Health Agencies

6
a. SN Visits
b. Home Health Aide

c. Other Staff

d.

e. Total patients
srvd.

13




Table 1 Cont. Two Most Actual Current Projected Years
Ended Recent Year {ending with first full year at full
Years Projected | utilization)

CY or FY (Circle) 20 20 20 20 | 20 \ 20 L 20

7. Hospice Programs

a. SN visits

b. Social work visits

c. Other staff visits

d.

e. Total patients srvd.

8. Ambulatory Surgical Facilities

a. Number of operating
rooms (ORs)

o Total Procedures in
ORs

» Total Cases in ORs

o Total Surgical Minutes
in ORs™*

b. Number of Procedure
Roocms (PRs)

o Total Procedures in
PRs

e Total Cases in PRs

¢ Total Minutes in PRs**

*Number of beds and occupancy percentage should be reported on the basis of licensed beds.
**Do not include turnover time.

TABLE 2: STATISTICAL PROJECTIONS - PROPOSED PROJECT
(INSTRUCTION: All applicants should complete this table.)

Projected Years
(Ending with first full year at full utilization)
CY or FY (Circle) 2017 | 20 | 20 | 20
1. Admissions
a. ICF-MR
b. RTC-Residents 8

14




Day Students

.ICF-C/D

d. Other (Specify)

. TOTAL

. Patient Days

. ICF-MR

o la o

. Residential Treatment Ctr

2920

[g)

ICF-C/D

d.

Other (Specify)

e.

TOTAL

. Average Length of Stay

. ICF-MR

. Residential Treatment Ctr

365

O

. ICF-C/D

Q.

. Other (Specify)

. TOTAL

. Occupancy Percentage*

. ICF-MR

(= 2N I I N N

. Residential Treatment Ctr

28%

. ICF-C/D

d.

Other (Specify)

e.

TOTAL

Table 2 Cont.

Projected Years
(Ending with first full year at full utilization)

CY or FY (Circle)

2017 | 20 | 20

| 20

5.

Number of Licensed Beds

a.

ICF-MR

b.

Residential Treatment Ctr

29

C.

ICF-C/D

d.

Other (Specify)

15




e. TOTAL

. Home Héélth Agencies

. SN Visits

T | o

. Home Health Aide

Q

e. Total patients served

: Hospiée Programs

. SN Visits

ool |~

. Social work visits

. Other staff visits

o]

d. Total patients served

8. Ambulatory Surgical Facilities

a. Number of operating rooms
(ORs)

e Totai Procedures in ORs

e Total Cases in ORs

e Total Surgical Minutes in
ORs**

b. Number of Procedure Rooms
(PRs)

o Total Procedures in PRs

e Total Cases in PRs

o Total Minutes in PRs**

*Do no include turnover time

10.24.01.08G(3){c). Availability of More Cost-Effective Alternatives.

The Commission shall compare the cost effectiveness of the proposed project with the
cost effectiveness of providing the service through alternative existing facilities, or
through an alternative facility that has submitted a competitive application as part of a
comparative review. '

Placing the target population out of state would be more expensive for the Deparfment of
Juvenile Services and not as clinically effective as treating the youth at the New
Diractions program {(see narrative attachment}.

16




INSTRUCTIONS: Please describe the planning process that was used to develop the proposed
project. This should include a full explanation of the primary goals or objectives of the project or
the problem(s) being addressed by the project. It should also identify the alternative
approaches to achieving those goals or objectives or solving those problem(s) that were
considered during the project planning process, including the alternative of the services being
provided by existing facilities.

For all alternative approaches, provide information on the level of effectiveness in goal or
objective achievement or problem resolution that each alternative would be likely to achieve and
the costs of each alternative. The cost analysis should go beyond development cost to consider
life cycle costs of project alternatives. This narrative should clearly convey the analytical
findings and reasoning that supported the project choices made. It should demonstrate why the
proposed project provides the most effeclive goal and objective achievement or the most
effective solution to the identified problem(s) for the level of cost required to implement the
project, when compared to the effectiveness and cost of alternatives including the alternative of
providing the service through alternative existing facilities, or through an alternative facility that
has submitied a competitive application as part of a comparative review.

10.24.01.08G(3)(d). Viability of the Proposal.

The Commission shall consider the availability of financial and nonfinancial resources,
including community support, necessary to implement the project within the time frames
set forth in the Commission's performance requirements, as well as the availability of
resources necessary to sustain the project.

INSTRUCTIONS: Please provide a complete description of the funding pian for the project,
documenting the availability of equity, grant(s), or philanthropic sources of funds and
demonstrating, to the extent possible, the ability of the applicant to obtain the debt financing
proposed. Describe the alternative financing mechanisms considered in project planning and
provide an explanation of why the proposed mix of funding sources was chosen.

We expect the project’s capital costs 1o be funded entirely through existing operations. If
needed, working capital advances are available from CTC's parent company, Florida
Investment Group. CTC’s audited financial statements for the past two years are attached.

e Complete Tables 3 and/or 4 below, as applicable. Attach additional pages as necessary
detailing assumptions with respect to each revenue and expense line item.

« Complete Table L (Workforce) from the Hospital CON Application Table Package.)

+ Audited financial statements for the past two years should be provided by all applicant
entities and parent companies to demonstrate the financial condition of the entities
involved and the availability of the equity contribution. If audited financial statements are
not available for the entity or individuals that will provide the equity contribution, submit
documentation of the financial condition of the entities and/or individuals providing the
funds and the availability of such funds. Acceptable documentation is a letter signed by
an independent Certified Public Accountant. Such letter shall detail the financial
information considered by the CPA in reaching the conclusion that adequate funds are
available.

17



s |f debt financing is required andfor grants or fund raising is proposed, detail the
experience of the entities and/or individuals involved in obtaining such financing and
grants and in raising funds for similar projects. If grant funding is proposed, identify the
grant that has been or will be pursued and document the eligibility of the proposed
project for the grant.

e Describe and document relevant community support for the proposed project.

e |dentify the performance requirements applicable to the proposed project (see question
12, "Project Schedule®) and explain how the applicant will be able to implement the
project in compliance with those performance requirements. Explain the process for
completing the project design, obtaining State and local land use, environmental, and
design approvals, contracting and obligating the funds within the prescribed time frame.
Describe the construction process or refer to a description elsewhere in the application
that demonstrates that the project can be completed within the applicable time frame(s).
Please see Narrative Attachment 4. Comprehensive Project Description

TABLE 3: REVENUES AND EXPENSES - ENTIRE FACILITY (including proposed
project)

(INSTRUCTION: ALL EXISTING FACILITY APPLICANTS MUST SUBMIT AUDITED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS)
Please see attachment

Two Most Actual Current Projected Years
Ended Recent Year (ending with first full year at full
Years Projected | utilization)
CY or FY (Circle) 2014___ [ 2015__ | 2016_ 2017_ |20___ |20 | 20
1. Revenue
a. Inpatient services 4 368 3,428 3,413 5016
b. Outpatient services 92 70 102 105
c. Gross Patient Service 4,461 3,499 3516 | 5124
Revenue
d. Allowance for Bad ( 74y ( &%) (200 (20}
Debt
e. Contractual Allowance (512) (623) 4es) | (603)
f. Charity Care - - -
g. Net Patient Services 3,875 2,791 3,027 | 4501
Revenue
h. Other Operating 1,233 892 749 949
Revenues (Specify)**
i. Net Operating Revenue 5108 3,683 3,776 | 5430

{in thousands)
**Fducation and grant revenues
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Table 3 Cont. Two Most Actual | Current Projected Years
Ended Recent Year (ending with first full year at full
Years Projected | utilization)

CY or FY (Circle 2014__{2015__ 2016__ | 2017_ iZO_mm |20 120

2. Expenses

a. Salaries, Wages, and 2,910 2,492 2412 3,452

Professional Fees, (including

fringe benefits)

b. Contractual Services 1,175 783 637 1,185

¢. Interest on Current Debt 9 6 5 4

d. Interest on Project Debt - -

e. Current Depreciation 18 30 28 42

f. Project Depreciation - - -

g. Current Amortization - - .

h. Project Amortization - - -

i, Supplies 244 144 120 201

j. Other Expenses (Specify)*™ 475 437 411 484

k. Total Operating Expenses 4,801 3,902 3673 5,348

3. Income

a. Income from Operation 307 (219) 103 102

b. Non-QOperating Income - - - -

c. Subtotal 307 (219) 103 102

d. Income Taxes (106) 33 - 6

e. Net Income (Loss) 201 (186) 103 96

{In thousands}
**Rent, utilities,

insurance,

and other
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Table 3 Cont. Two Most Actual Current Projected Years
Ended Recent Year (ending with first full year at full
Years Projected | utilization)

CY or FY (Circle) 2014 __ \ 2015_ | 2016_ 2017_ | 20 \ 20 | 20
4, Patient Mix:
A. Percent of Total Revenue

1. Medicare

2 Medicaid 75% 93% 89% 8%

3. Blue Cross

4, Commercial Insurance

5. Self-Pay

8. Other (Specify)** 25% 7% 1% 11%

7 TOTAL 100% | 100% 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100%
B. Perce.nt of Patiént Days/Visits/Procedures (as applicable)

1. Medicare

2 Medicaid 75% 95% 0% 0%

3. Blue Cross

4, Commercial Insurance

5. Self-Pay

6. Other (Specify)** 25% 5% 10% 10%

7 TOTAL 100% 100% 100% 100% | 100% 100% 100%

(in thousands)

“*Department of Juvenile Services
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TABLE 4: REVENUES AND EXPENSES - PROPOSED PROJECT

(INSTRUCTION: Each applicant should complete this table for the proposed project only)

Projected Years
(Ending with first full year at full utilization)

CY or FY (Circle) 2017 | 20 |20 | 20
1. Revenues
a. Inpatient Services 1,606

b. Outpatient Services -

c. Gross Patient Services 1,606
Revenue

d. Allowance for Bad Debt -

e. Contractual Allowance (193)

f. Charity Care -

g. Net Patient Care Service 1,413

Revenues

h. Total Net Operating 1,613
Revenue

2. Expenses

a. Salaries, Wages, and 1,036

Professional Fees, (including
fringe benefits)

b. Contractual Services 250

c. Interest on Current Debt !

d. Interest on Project Debt -

e. Current Depreciation

f. Project Depreciation 4

g. Current Amortization —

h. Project Amortization -

i. Supplies 60
j- Other Expenses (Specify)** 145
k. Total Operating Expenses 1,604

{in thousandsg)
**Rent, ubilities, insurance, and other
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10.24.01.08G(3){e). Compliance with Conditions of Previous Certificates of Need.

An applicant shall demonstrate compliance with all terms and conditions of each
previous Certificate of Need granted to the applicant, and with all commitments made
that earned preferences in obtaining each previous Certificate of Need, or provide the
Commission with a written notice and explanation as to why the conditions or
commitments were not met.

NIA :

INSTRUCTIONS: List all of the Maryland Ceriificates of Need that have been issued 1o the
project applicant, its parent, or its affiliates or subsidiaries over the prior 15 years, including their
terms and conditions, and any changes to approved Certificates that needed to be obtained.
Document that these projects were or are being implemented in compliance with all of their

terms and conditions or explain why this was not the case.

NiA

10.24.01.08G(3){f). Impact on Existing Providers and the Health Care Delivery System.

An applicant shall provide information and analysis with respect to the impact of the
proposed project on existing health care providers in the health planning region,

including the impact on geographic and demographic access to services, on occupancy,
on costs and charges of other providers, and on costs to the health care delivery system.

INSTRUCTIONS: Please provide an analysis of the impact of the proposed project. Please
assure that all sources of information used in the impact analysis are identified and identify all
the assumptions made in the impact analysis with respect to demand for services, payer mix,
access to service and cost to the health care delivery system including relevant populations
considered in the analysis, and changes in market share, with information that supports the

validity of these assumptions. Provide an analysis of the following impacts:

a) On the volume of service provided by all other existing health care providers that are

likely to experience some impact as a result of this project;

b} On the payer mix of all other existing health care providers that are likely to experience
some impact on payer mix as a result of this project. If an applicant for a new nursing
home claims no impact on payer mix, the applicant must identify the likely source of any

expected increase in patients by payer.

¢) On access to health care services for the service area population that will be served by
the project. (State and support the assumptions used in this analysis of the impact on

access),

d) On costs to the health care delivery system.

If the applicant is an existing facility or program, provide a summary description of the impact of
the proposed project on the applicant’s costs and charges, consistent with the information
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provided in the Project Budget, the projections of revenues and expenses, and the work force
information.

Since Chesapeake Trealment Centers, ing will real only residents who cannol be realed al

other Marviand facilities, there will be no impact on other Marvland Residential Treatment
Centers.
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Attachment 1

Part 1.2 Ownership Structural Chart



g

oUJ ‘I9JUd))
ymnox ayeadesay)
%001

"ouf ‘s1oju9))
juouneal], ayeadesay)

%001

"OU] ‘SINUD))
JUAWIRAL], PUB]AIRIA
%001

S digsu

S
*

ndey-uewnsy] esrg
URGN]ST,] Ueutje7
TBIYST] 830809y
UBUIYS[ DIRIA]

JO IR AU A0y 4






Attachment 2

Part I1.5. Organizational Chart
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Attachment 3

Part [.8.A. Executive Summary of the
Project



Part 1 - PROJECT IDENTIFICATION AND GENERAL INFORMATION

8. Project Description
A. Executive Summary of the Project:

The Chesapeake Treatment Centers (CTC) New Directions Residential Treatment Center
is licensed by the Maryland Department of Health and Mental Hygiene and accredited by
The Joint Commission. New Directions has established itself with the Maryland
Department of Juvenile Services (DJS) as an extremely effective clinical service provider.
It is the only Residential Treatment Center (RTC) in the State historically dedicated to the
assessment and treatment of adjudicated juvenile sex offenders (AJSOs) and their
families.

DJS has identified a need to bring back older males now placed out of state because of
the lack of an appropriate program for them in Maryland. CTC is proposing to use 8 of
its 29 existing beds to provide a highly specialized program for these transition-age youth
(ages 18 through 20). The proposed non-AJSO RTC beds would be dedicated to
transitional youth in the custody of the Maryland Department of Juvenile Services for
whom placement in another Maryland RTC has not been possible, or for whom clinically
suitable services are not available in another Maryland RTC.

Established in 2000 on the grounds of the Charles H. Hickey School, New Directions has
treated more than 400 youth aged 14 through 20 in its treatment continuum. The New
Directions clinical team members implement a comprehensive array of “promising
practice™ evidence-based treatment models that have proven highly successful in treating
their young patients. Elements of these treatment models will be implemented with the
new program for older youth, The Right Moves.

For the last several years, DJS officials have been concerned about the consistent yearly
placement of ten to twelve male adolescents aged 18 through 20 in out-of-state facilifies.
Three major factors cause these placements: the transitional age of the youth in need; the
lack of a hardware-secure RTC in Maryland that can offer comprehensive clinical
services to this age group; and the complexity of mental health, substance abuse and
behavioral problems that a number of the older youth exhibit.

The New Directions social workers, psychiatrists, nurses, special educators, and support
staff have developed clinical skills that equip them to successfully treat DJS youth of a/
ages who exhibit a multiplicity of difficult treatment issues, yet who do not have a
history of sexual misconduct.

Establishing The Right Moves requires a projected cost of $80,000.00 for paint, minor
repairs, new furniture, curriculum materials, etc. No new construction is involved. A



grouping of already existing patient rooms will be dedicated to the new service separate
from the current patient bedrooms. Additional evidence-based practice models will be
introduced for the new program, expanded training will be provided for all staff, and
meticulous scheduling of activities and common areas for the two populations of patients
will ensure a safe, secure therapeutic environment for patients in both programs.
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Part [.8.B. Comprehensive Project
Description



8.B. Comprehensive Project Description:
Description of the Current “New Directions” Program:

The Chesapeake Treatment Centers, Inc. (CTC) New Directions program is the only
Residential Treatment Center in Maryland specifically designed for the assessment,
treatment and placement of juveniles with sexual behavioral problems, sexual disorders
and other complex behavioral and medical problems. The Maryland Department of
Juvenile Services is the exclusive referring agency to New Directions. The 29 bed
program treats male adolescents between the ages of 14 through 20 who have committed
sexual offenses and who demonstrate the need for the comprehensive continuum of
clinical programming offered at the facility.

New Directions is located on the grounds of the Charles H. Hickey School and is
considered a hardware secure facility. New Directions is licensed by the Maryland
Department of Health and Mental Hygiene (Department of Behavioral Health) and
accredited by The Joint Commission. New Directions has established a state-wide
reputation for excellence and quality care since opening in 2000. Program clinicians

have treated more than 400 youth presenting for treatment with a multiplicity of problems

in addition to their sexual behavioral disorders including: mental health disorders,
substance use disorders, socialization, cognitive, learning and behavioral issues, family
problems, and communication issues. Lengths of stay for residents vary from six to
eighteen months and are dictated by clinical need and progress and the resident’s risk to
self or community. All treatment is coordinated closely with DJS and court personnel.

Skilled clinicians with many years of experience in treating troubled youth have designed
the therapeutic components of the program to address the particular strengths and
problem areas germane to each resident and his family. The highly individualized
approach utilized to construct each youth’s treatment plan involves the javenile services
case manager, parents/guardians, family members, and any other relevant community-
based agency personnel. All work together to assist the youth in achieving his treatment
goals and those treatment goals constructed for the family/foster family during his
residential stay. Support resources are identified prior to discharge so treatment gains can
be maintained successfully after discharge.

Clinicians for New Directions address key areas of the patients’ functioning.
Components of ¢linical programming include: understanding personal patterns of
maladaptive abuse behaviors; victim empathy and impact; healthy sexuality and
relationships; affective regulation; social and communication skills development; and
safety/relapse prevention.

In recent data released by the Maryland Department of Juvenile Services, a review of
graduates from the program over a period of five years post discharge revealed that less

than 6% of New Directions graduates had been arrested for any crime.

New Directions has distinguished its services from other Residential Treatment Centers



(RTCs) in Maryland in several important areas that have influenced the decision to
devote a portion of the clinical programming to The Right Moves. New Directions is the
only RTC in Maryland that is currently dedicated to the treatment of patients referred
exclusively by the Maryland Department of Juvenile Services (DJS). The program’s
clinical teams have successfully treated many youth who were rejected by other providers
because of the youth’s physical health, severity of conduct disorder, or other behavioral
issues. Despite accepting highly challenged youth, New Directions has established and
maintained a therapeutic environment that is safer and has had less incidents, e.g.,
AWOLS, patient to patient aggression, therapeutic holds, etc. than most other providers
in the State. The Right Moves will accept only patients referred from DJS and the
clinical teams will utilize their collective years of experience to successfully treat the new
population. :

New Directions has developed a unique clinical treatment continuum that is particularly
effective. Since opening, more that 90% of the youth treated at the facility have been
transitioned successfully into the community. In formulating each patient’s treatment
plan, New Directions clinicians consider and include information about: the stability of
the home situation and the capacity of parents or guardians to provide effective
supervision; the perception and feelings of the parents/guardians; the ability of parents to
protect vulnerable family members; strengths evident in family members that can be
utilized to support treatment goals; the role of the parents/guardians/family members in
any of the abuse incidents or the victimization of the patient; any Social Services family
involvement; and the identification of all treatment modalities and community support
services necessary for the family.

Throughout treatment in the current specialized programing, the New Directions
clinicians focus on the following elements as related to each youth: the assessment of risk
that ongoing dangerous behaviors could continue; identification of the youth’s learned
experiences and processes that may have led to abuse-related behaviors and their
potential continuance; the motivation of the youth fo accept and engage in treatment; the
identification of abnormal, antisocial or deviant patterns of thoughts, feelings and
behaviors; and finally, an understanding of the situational context in which the sexual
offense has occurred. That understanding is essential, since every youth entering
treatment exhibits different and varying degrees of sexual misconduct and disorders.

The individuals contributing to the construction of each treatment plan include the New
Directions psychiatrist, the Clinical Director of the program who is a licensed mental
health practitioner, the primary therapist for each resident, the parents or guardians,
relevant court personnel, the probation officer/case manager, a representative of the
facility’s milieu staff, a member of the New Directions Academy staff, and a victim’s
advocate/therapist where clinically appropriate.

The individualized treatment plan for each resident involves group and individual therapy
and counseling, intensive family education and counseling (familial and/or foster),
cognitive behavioral therapy, educational/vocational services, participation in an
extensive life skills curriculum, substance abuse/use treatment, anger management,



recreational and expressive therapies, primary nursing and medical care, cultural
enrichment activities, and a very active sports program. The Board Certified psychiatrist
for the program leads the clinical team efforts, conducts all psychiatric assessments, and
monitors medication management.

All youth attend the New Directions Academy, a Maryland State Department of
Education approved Special Education and regular education school on grounds. Many of
the current patient population enter New Directions with school histories riddled with
excessive absenteeism, learning problems, suspensions and failure. The New Directions
Academy staff is skilled in assessment, diagnosis of learning problems and remediation
of those problems. Course work is high interest and geared to individual needs. The
success rate for youngsters graduating with a high school diploma from the Academy is
significant. There is also a vocational education component to the Academy that allows
youngsters who will never be able to achieve graduation with a regular diploma to
successfully attain a vocational education and certification. A number of the patients
have successfully attended college classes off campus after graduating from the New
Directions Academy.

Family involvement and communication and counseling and therapy with family
members is a primary focus of the program. Transportation or in-home therapy is
provided gratis and as needed for those family members who cannot travel to the facility
because of costs or lack of access to private transport. Communication takes place
between the therapists and the relevant family members throughout the treatment process.
Transition, placement and aftercare planning takes place months before the patient is
actually discharged. Identification of appropriate resources within the community and
the safety of the patient, the family and the community are key in determining placement
plans.

The philosophy of care embraced by New Directions clinicians in treating the young
sexual offender places primary importance on the individual patient’s understanding of
and taking responsibility for his own behaviors and for his learming how his offence has
negatively impacted his victim, his victim’s family, his own family and himself. Finally,
the philosophy of care at the facility emphasizes a strengths-based approach that
considers each life domain and that enhances the positive elements identified in each
patient and in specific family members, and the identification of and connection with
resources in the home community that can support treatment gains post-discharge.

Description of Proposed New Service:

The Right Moves -
A Treatment and Life Preparation Program for Older Adolescents

The Right Moves will be a comprehensive treatment and life preparation program for

older youth ages 18 through 20 referred directly and exclusively by the Maryland
Department of Juvenile Services (DJS). The program will consist of eight (8) specifically
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dedicated beds that will be converted to the new service from the already existing 29 beds
at the New Directions facility. .

The patients will be those for whom placement in another Maryland RTC has not been
possible, or for whom clinically suitable services are not available in another Maryland
RTC. Youth referred to The Right Moves will present for treatment with a constellation
of mental health, substance abuse, and behavioral, family, socialization, cognitive,
learning, educational and vocational problems.

Most patients referred to the new program will have a history of residential treatment in
varied settings including long-term residential treatment, acute psychiatric
hospitalizations, group homes, and/or short-term residential stays for substance use
disorders (SUD). The Right Moves Program has been designed by and will be
implemented by the current treatment experts, administrators, clinicians, special
educators and support staff from New Directions. The Right Moves will offer a
multifaceted array of evidence-based clinical approaches, life skills and vocational
preparation curriculum materials, and extensive family communication and counseling,
The program’s focus will be to furnish each patient with the tools he will need to function
as a healthy, self-regulating, responsible and contributing member of his home
community.

The program will include integrated mental health services and substance abuse
education, prevention and treatment, in addition to a core curriculum that will emphasize
individualized assessment, stabilization of mental health, education, socialization skills,
physical health, cognitive and communication skills building, self-discovery, self-
regulation, and family re-connection (as appropriate). Major emphasis will be placed on
job/vocational preparation and training, career exploration and planning, and
participation in community service programs both on and off grounds.

The Right Moves will be a highly structured program with a full daily schedule of
individual therapy, counseling groups, and participation in academnic, vocational, job
preparation or Grade Equivalency Diploma (GED) class work in addition to an extensive
array of other structured activities. The Right Moves program will utilize a positive
behavioral intervention approach that has rewards and positive recognition built into it in
order to reinforce desired behaviors from participants. Rules regarding behaviors,
language and appearance, and guidelines for successfully participating in groups and
activities will be included in the patient handbook. The handbooks will be given to each
youngster and his/her parent/guardian and the DJS case manager upon admission.

Before placement in The Right Moves groups or activities, each new admission will be
assisted by staff to become familiar with and understand his individualized program
schedule, the rules and guidelines for groups, school/vocational education and daily
activities participation, and the need to comply so that all may benefit from the group
experience and other program elements.

The ongoing group process will allow the patients to have active input into



implementation of the positive behavioral intervention system, into planning certain
group activities related to the curriculum elements presented, and into a peer support
culture where successful functioning, demonstrating healthy leadership skills, and being
honest about one’s own behaviors (self-rating) will be given positive and immediate
recognition. This positive behavioral intervention and peer support approach has been
extremely successful with the current New Directions patient population and staff expect
that this intervention system will be extremely effective with The Right Moves patients.

The Right Moves clinicians will implement individual and group counseling sessions that
focus on social skills development, problem solving, anger management, self-
understanding, self-regulation, responsibility to one’s self, one’s family and one’s
community and, as appropriate for those with SUD, relapse prevention. The curriculum
elements will include materials on all of these topics and a primary emphasis will be
placed throughout the treatment process on the building of basic life skills, identification
of strengths, and elimination of all high-risk behaviors that would, if not addressed,
contribute to the patient’s inability to disengage from antisocial behaviors and activities
after discharge.

Each resident’s ability to suceessfully complete high school or a vocational/pre-
vocational certification program will be reviewed and The Right Moves clinical team will
coordinate efforts in this area with the New Directions Academy staff members.
Successtul participation in the educational/vocational components of the program will
imcrease each patient’s chances for employment and/or continued schooling/training after
discharge.

The New Directions Academy successfully graduates from six to eight high school
students each year. Often, these youth have experienced many years of absenteeism,
suspensions and a persistent cycle of school failure. The high-interest programming at
the Academy, implemented by a dedicated and creative team of teachers and a school
principal committed to the success of her students has contributed each academic year to
the successful re-engagement of young patients who were previously “turned off* to
school and learning. The Academy offers a wide range of all required academic subject
areas as well as pre-vocational training coursework that includes computer technology
and the culinary arts.

Another aspect of the educational/vocational services offered by the New Directions
Academy and clinical team is the Graduate Work Program. The Graduate Work Program
was instituted several years ago and offers paid work opportunities in the maintenance,
custodial, and dietary departments of the facility. The program is specifically designed to
simulate a work environment and prepare the older patients for the workplace. Patients
from The Right Moves who will be enrolled in the graduate work program must have
achieved a certain level of clinical progress, maintain their standing in the therapeutic
community by complying with all aspects of their treatment, and perform productively in
their particular job responsibilities on campus.

The patients enrolled in the Graduate Work Program receive Job Descriptions,



performance evaluations, and supervisory support and guidance from the Director of
Environmental Services, who functions as a member of the clinical team. The Graduate
Work participants need to punch in and punch out when their duty hours are over and
they receive a real paycheck for services rendered. The Graduate Work Program patients
from The Right Moves will deposit their checks in the “bank™ which is set up by
Chesapeake Treatment Centers and a bi-monthly account balance will be issued to them.
Upon discharge from freatment, all funds in the account will be distributed to the patient.

The Graduate Work patients learn basic maintenance and environmental care skills and
participate in ongoing safety training and equipment use workshops. This program has
proven to be an extremely valuable treatment component at New Directions, particularly
for our older residents. Enrollment of The Right Moves patients, once they have
progressed in treatment, will be an extremely productive treatment element for them.

The average length of stay for patients in treatment in The Right Moves will be nine
months. Once the youth has achieved a certain level of responsibility and has met his
treatment goals, he will be able to go on home passes that are approved by DJS, the
psychiatrist, and the rest of the clinical team members. These home passes will be issued
on a graduated scale - from several-hour visits, to day passes, to overnight passes.
Discharge and transition planning begins from the first day of admission since many of
the older youth referred to the program will not return home and will need a support
system of community based resources in the communities to which they will return. The
New Directions staff has many years of experience in placing hundreds of graduates
from its program in placements throughout the State and has developed collaborative
working relationships with hundreds of agency and advocacy personnel that will be very
valuable to The Right Moves patient population.

The Right Moves program elements will include:

¢ Comprehensive mental health assessment, diagnosis, treatment, and medication
management

e Substance Use Disorders (SUD) prevention, education, and treatment

» Therapeutic milieu and positive peer culture

¢ Evidence-based practice models for care, e.g., Cognitive Behavioral Therapy
(CBT), Motivational Enhancement Therapy (MET), Recovery-Oriented Systems
of Care (ROSC)

o Individual, group and family counseling

o Strengths-based individualized treatment

Educational assessment and services as needed, regular or special education

Individual and group counseling

Structured family education and counseling program with flexible hours available

to provide easy access and transportation for family members provided as needed

Case Management

* Positive Behavioral Interventions including a Peer Support Culture

¢ Vocational assessments, programming and vocational program placement

e Carcer exploration and planning



¢ Job preparedness and help with job search with the goal of each resident
accessing a viable part-time or full-time position in his home community prior to
discharge

e Community services program with residents volunteering, e.g., in the local animal
shelters, soup kitchens, etc.

e Competency, Life Skills and Character Development curriculum

e Special interest and gender specific groups will include: conflict resolution, health
education, anger management, violence prevention, accountability and
responsibility, etc. '

e Victim awareness

¢ Nutritional and diet planning

Physical health and training with youth in an already existing sports and

recreation program

Parenting classes for those youth with children

Cultural awareness with field trips to local museums, cultural events, etc.

Art and music activities

Recreation and sports activities on grounds

Identification of community resources that are specifically designed to support the

gains made for each individual upon discharge

Discharge and Continuing Care planning

¢ Monitoring twelve months post-discharge in a collaborative effort with the
Department of Juvenile Services so that model viability and outcomes can be
assessed

The following section describes in more detail all of those therapeutic program elements
that will be offered at The Right Moves. These include:

Individual Therapy — Each patient will have weekly one-on-one scheduled therapy
sessions throughout his treatment stay with his primary therapist in order to process
individual issues and discuss the treatment plan, achievement of goals, problems
encountered, successes for the week, family dynamics, participation in overall program,
etc. The number of weekly individual sessions for each patient will vary according to
clinical need.

Group Therapy - The overall goal is to help the youth identify the role of his emotions
in triggering and/or reinforcing negative and destructive behaviors while dealing with
peers, while at the same time developing tools for intervening and learning more adaptive
and healthy ways to experience and cope with emotions.

Cognttive individual and group work helps build the skills of self-analysis, understanding
all options available, and learming to make better choices. The denial, minimizations, and
rationalizations that are characteristic of youth who habitually offend are cognitive
processes, so the cognitive work in treatment really supports the building of each youth’s
constructive self-monitoring and enhanced self-control. Group therapy is offered four
times per week.



Positive Peer Culture: Community Group - The Positive Peer Culture community
group is a daily forum where the patients address their relationships with each other. The
focus is on conflict resolution, constructive interpersonal communi¢ation, and/or to
express appreciation for other patients who have been helpful to a peer or to the entire
group. In addition to being a forum for practicing interpersonal skills being learned, the
Community Group also serves as a prevention tool to ensure that personal conflicts and
tensions are addressed regularly and do not escalate into more serious incidents. The
Positive Peer Culture approach supports the philosophy of strengths-based treatment at
New Directions and has proven to be an extremely valuable clinical tool. Since the
approach is so successful for current patients, a Positive Peer Culture Community Group
will be established for the patients in The Right Moves program.

Family Therapy - Clinicians will assess each patient’s family situation and actively
solicit parent and/or guardian involvement as part of the family counseling program.
Parents and guardians will learn how to communicate better with their son and will be
assisted to recognize their son’s strengths and other factors that have led their son into a
cycle of juvenile justice involvement and failed placements. Parents and/or guardians
will help formulate initial and ongoing treatment goals for the patient and for family
members, and will learn methods to healthfully support the patient upon discharge.

Participation in the family therapy sessions is a key element in treatment. Therefore, The
Right Moves clinical team will assist family members who cannot access transportation
on their own to attend the family sessions, either by providing transportation with one of
the facility vans, by paying for public transport to the facility, or by delivering family
therapy in the home.

Clinicians at the facility view family counseling and therapy for the patients as a vehicle
to build new channels of communication, to assist with the family’s self-identification of
dysfunctional patterns of family behavior, and to educate and guide so that the parents
and guardians can contribute to supporting the patient’s successful functioning after
discharge. '

Expressive Therapies - Patients are helped with expressing difficult and negative
thoughts and feelings through various creative mediums, including art, music, and
physical activities. New Directions currently provides a comprehensive expressive
therapy program that offers music therapy, a theater arts program, cultural enrichment
activities, and three competitive sports teams (softball, volleyball and basketball). The
New Directions sports teams compete with other RTC and non-public school teams. The
art, music and drama activities give the patients safe and structured settings to help them
express emotions and deal with issues they might otherwise not be able to do.
Participating in the sports programs help patients work as a team, build upon their own
strengths and skills, and have successful normalized peer interactions. The Right Moves
patients will have access to all of those expressive therapies and activities currently
offered at the facility.

Trauma/Grief/Spirituality - Recovery from dependencies and other self-defeating
behaviors involves recognizing that grieving, i.e., that process by which all humans adjust



to loss and change, has been a significant and frequently under-acknowledged dynamic in
our patients’ lives. Many of the older youth referred to The Right Moves will have
histories of loss, trauma, abuse, and will have suffered from feelings of depression and
hopelessness.

Through the Trauma/Grief and Spirituality counseling sessions, The Right Move patients
will be educated in the normal and natural process that leads to resolution of loss and
trauma. Patients will learn how this process has been interrupted by the use of mood-
altering substances, compulsive behaviors, antisocial behaviors, or dysfunctional family
roles. Qutcomes of grief/trauma work at the current program frequently include increased
self-esteem, reduction in reported depression and seif-harm, and a dramatic emergence of
energy for life and the tasks of recovery.

Emotional access is further encouraged as the bridge to personal spiritual discovery. The
ability to 1dentify, experience, and express all emotions appropriately is the conduit to
authenticity, values clarification, and healthy and adaptive connections with self and
others.

For those patients who wish to participate, a non-denominational church services is
provided every other Friday evening. The Right Moves patients will also be allowed,
with the juvenile services and family permission, to have periodic visits from personal
clergy members from the individual patient’s religious organization.

Physical Health/Medication - The Right Moves patients will have access to the CTC
full-time psychiatrist, attending pediatrician, and licensed dietician for all psychiatric,
medical and physical health care needs. The nursing station is located in the same
building as the patients and staff are available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week for
immediate medical needs. Each patient in the program will be paired with a primary
nurse. Patients will receive dental care services every 6 months and yearly vision
screenings. The appropriate use of medications for individuals suffering from severe
depression, bipolar disorder, panic disorder, or other disorders can be extremely helpful
in furthering rehabilitation and recovery. A thorough evaluation is given prior to
prescribing any medication. The physician and/or nurse will also speak with individual
residents before a prescription is considered in order to explain the purpose of the
medication and any side effects that could ensue. Nursing and Medical staff will offer
educational sessions on medications and common diseases, e.g. diabetes and high blood
pressure, as part of their ongoing didactic lectures series. Weekly nursing psycho-
educational groups will also address other relevant health care topics, e.g., HIV, safe
sexual practices, etc.

Educational and Vocational Training - As mentioned in an earlier section of this
description, patients in The Right Moves program will attend the Maryland State
Department of Education certified school, The New Directions Academy, which offers
Special Education, Regular Education and Vocational Education coursework. A number
of the current New Directions patients have attended college courses and vocational
training programs off campus, and several have held part-time jobs in the community



(those close to discharge). Clearly, an adequate education is fundamentally important for
success in later life. As The Right Moves patients learn new ways to deal with their
problems, cognitive reasoning, and behaviors, they are provided with educational
opportunities to help them obtain the information and experiences necessary for
achieving their goals.

Patients will be given many and varied opportunities for vocational development since
exploration of different career paths can assist each patient to learn about new areas of
interest. A Culinary Arts curriculum and computer technology arts coursework are
available through The New Directions Academy. As described in a previous section, a
Graduate Employee work program on site is available for those patients who have
completed high school.

Prior to discharge back into the community, the clinical team will arrange for patients to
become involved with the local branch of the Maryland Division of Rehabilitation
Services (DORS) since The Right Moves patients will qualify for access to training and
services provided by DORS.

Behavior Management System - All patients will participate in the positive Behavioral
Management System utilized at the facility. In order to help each patient be successful in
the community and in achieving his individualized treatment goals, a Level System and
the treatment and achievement approaches included therein provide a step-by-step
learning experience that addresses specific behavioral and conduct issues and, at the same
time, identifies and supports the strengths and clinical needs of each patient.

The Behavior Management System is based on strengths, health and achievement and has
proven to be extremely successful since it supports the other treatment components and
curriculum utilized at the treatment center.

Transition and Discharge Planning - The entire treatment team is responsible for
planning the transition and continuing care plan well in advance of discharge. During the
several months prior to discharge, the individual therapist and other clinical team
members begin to hold specific meetings (more frequently as the projected discharge date
approaches), in order to identify issues regarding housing, mental health and SUD
support services in the community, job opportunities or continuation of school or
vocational training, services provided by the local DORS office, and the availability of
family support and involvement with the patient post-discharge. These Discharge
Planning meetings will include the patient, the XIS case manager, the parent or guardian,
Academy staff, direct care staff, and the individual therapist.

The written Transition and Discharge Plan will include specific information for the
patient, the DJS case manager, and the family regarding support services and the patient’s
connection to a school, vocational training, or job placement; an appointment with a
community-based mental health therapist; identification of and appointment with ongoing
substance abuse treatment and prevention resources (as clinically appropriate);
identification of and appointments with community-based family support resources, etc.

10



If the patient cannot return home, a housing arrangement will be made in collaboration
with DJS that will support the safety and progress of the patient and the ongoing safety of
the community. Other life domains will be considered and addressed in construction of
the discharge plan, including: spirituality, social/recreational, medical care, physical
fitness, nutrition, vocational/educational, financial, and legal support.

As described previously, if the family is involved and supportive the patient will be sent
on graduated day/overnight home passes to “test” functioning. These home visits will
help the team, patient, and family to measure progress in treatment as well as present
opportunities for discussion in counseling with the patient and the family,

Assiduous planning with attention to details in each life domain will ensure the patient’s
better and more successful functioning back in the community. The Right Moves will
offer older DJS-involved youth a solution-oriented, problem-specific program that will
equip each patient with the support, treatment, and tools necessary to transition to a
healthy and independent adulthood.

Physical Plant and Schedule ~ B. (1) through (5)

8.B(1)
Construction, renovation, and demolition plans — The Right Moves
program will not require construction or demolition. As reflected in the
schematic drawings of the floor plans for the facility (Attachment A), a
number of existing patient rooms will be reassigned for use by the target
population. These rooms are all single-occupancy and each contains its
own private lavatory. The rooms will be repainted and will be refurbished
with new bedding, new bed frames and mattresses, and dressers.
Additionally, small desks with chairs that will function as study areas will
be added to the bedrooms. The projected costs for repairs, furnishings and
painting is $80,000. An itemized list and budget is included in
Attachment B.

8.B(2)
Changes in square footage of departments and units — The square
footage for each bedroom dedicated to the new program is 80 sq. ft. The
square footage for the newly designated community (day) room for the
patients in The Right Moves i1s 696 sq. ft. The indoor gymnasium,
cafeteria, and the New Directions Academy are common areas that will be
scheduled for exclusive use by The Right Moves during certain time slots
within the facility’s daily schedule. However, since both New Directions
patients and The Right Moves patients will be utilizing those common
areas, there is no change of square footage usage for those areas. In
summary, the total change in square footage utilization for the new
program is 1,336 sq. ft.

8.B.(3) _
Physical Plant or Location Changes — There will be no location or
physical plant changes required for The Right Moves programming other

11



than the minor renovations described above.

8.B.(4) -
Changes to affected services following completion of the project —
There will be no change to the current services offered at the New
Directions service except for the reallocation of the eight (8) designated
beds to the new program patients for The Right Moves.

8.B.(5)
Project Schedule — It is estimated that within sixty (60) days of the
Certificate of Need approval, The Right Moves program will be able to
accept its first patient. Staffing is already in place and the cosmetic repairs
and furnishings will be in place within sixty days of the granting of the
Certificate of Need. Notification will be sent to the Maryland Department
of Juvenile Services immediately upon receipt of the Certificate of Need
approval so the Department can initiate the process for bringing back to
Maryland some of those patients currently out of state. The Department
would then also be able to send out notice to all of the DIS Directors and
Supervisors that The Right Moves was approved and that target
population patients could be placed at the facility rather than sending any
more older youth to out-of-state placements.
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Attachment 5

Part [.13. Project Drawings



CHESAPEAKE TREATMENT CENTER

CHEASAPEAKE TREATMENT CENTER, INC
FYE JUNE 30,2014

SQUARE FOOTAGE SUMMARY . Line Square Footage

Employes Health and Welfare 3 88
ALG 4 1332
Repairs & Maintenance _ 5 423
Laundry/Linens 7 " 80
Housekeeping 8 40
Dietary 9 682
Medical Records 15 207
Social Servives 16 464
Medical Services 18 88
Avtivity Thearapy 21 1858
RTC 28 3803
Education 44 1557
Subtotai 10820
Common Area 1 0
Total 10820
i
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CHESAPEAKE TREATMENT CENTER

CHEASAPEAKE TREATMENT CENTER, INC
FYE JUNE 30,2014

SQUARE FOOTAGE SUMMARY . Line
Employee Health and Welfare
A&G
Repairs & Maintenance
Laundry/Linens
Housekseping
Dietary
Medical Records
Social Servives
Medical Services
Avtivity Thearapy
RTC :
Education
Subtotal
Common Area
Total

W W = ;AL

13

19
21
26
44

Square Footage

88
1332
423
80
40
882
207
464
86
1958
3903

1557

10820

10820
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Attachment 6

Part II. Project Budget, Table E



TABLE E. PROJECT BUDGET
NS TREET S for

A USE OF FUNDS

Other Structure

Total

1. CAPITAL COSTS

2, Land Purchase $0
. New Construction
{1) _Buiiding 80

{2) Fixed Equipment

$0

(3} Ske and Infrastructure

{4} Architect/Engineering Fees

(5) Permits {Building, Uiilitles, Etc.)

SUBTOTAL
c, _Renovations
1) Building $40,000 $40 000

{2) Fixed Equipment (not included in construction)

{3) Architect/Engineering Faes

{4) Permits (Building, Utilities, Etc.)

SUBTOTAL

d. Other Capital Costs

SUBTOTAL

TOTAL CURRENT CAPITAL COSTS

&. _Inflation Allowance

TOTAL CAPITAL COSTS

-2, Financing Cost and Other Cash Requirements

{1) Movable Equipment 340,000 $40.000
(2} _Canlingency Allowance 30
{3} Gross Interest during construction pericd 30
{4) Other (Specifi/add rows if necded) 50

* hé‘%ﬁfonai instruction for cost categories

These costs should be consistent with the Marshalf Valuation Service
[ ition of Group 1 equip Permanent equipment, instalied on or
attached to the building, part of a gensral contract, and included Jn
calcufator costs.

Ensure that SUBTOTAL includes all categories under 1.b.

M| Ensure thet SUBTOTAL includes alf categories under 1.c.

Loan Placement Fees

Bond Discount

Non-Legal Consultant Fees

Liquidafion of Existing Debt

a.
b.
c. Legal Fees
d
2.
£

SUBTOTAL

3. Working Capital Startup Costs

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS

|B. Sources of Funds

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS

Annual Lease Costs {if apphicable)

1. Cash 380,000 $80,000
2. Philanthropy (to date and expected) $0
3. Autherized Bonds o]
4. Interest Income from bond proceeds listed in #3 Q
5, Mortgage 0
6. Working Capital Loans 0
7. Grants or Appropriations

& Federal $0

b. State $0,

¢, Lecal $0
8. Other (Specifi/add rows if needed) 30

1. Land

. Building

Major Movable Equipment

2

3.

4, Winor Movable Equipment

5. Gther (Specify/add rows if needed)

Describe the terms of the |ease(s) below, including information on the fair market value of the itemi{s), and the number of years, annuat

cost, and the interest rate for the lease.

Cafcutate sum of all categories under 1.4,

Ensure that TOTAL CURRENT CAPITAL COSTS includes all
SUBTOTALS ahove

Inflation should only be included in this category

Ensure that TOTAL CAPITAL COSTS includes TOTAL CURRENT
APITAL COSTS and inflation Allowance

M Celculate sum of alf categories under 2,

Stant up costs are costs incurred bafore opening & facility or new
service that under gensrally sccepfed accounting principles are not
chargeabie as opsraling expense or maintenance.

Ensure that TOTAL USES OF FUNDS includes TOTAL CAPITAL
OSTS, SUBTOTAL under A.2., and Woridng Capital Startup Casts

Identify and explain the sources, plans, and the hospital's experience
regarding fundraising goals under the response fo the Viability standard
in Secfion XX of the CON appfication.

Jnciude the value of any donated land for the profect in this calegary

alculate sum of aif categorfes under B; Note that TOTAL SCURCES
F FUNDS sfrould match TOTAL USES OF FUNDS






Attachment 7

Part II1.4 Settlement Agreement



SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

L PARTIES
This Settlement Agreement (Agreemeni) is entered into among the United States of
America, acting through the United States Department of Justice and on behalf of the Office of
Inspecter General (OIG-HHS) of the Department of Health and Human Services (HHS)
{collectively the “United States™) and the State of Maryland, acting through the Attorney
General’s Office ("State of Marylend™); and the Chesapeake Youth Center, Inc, (hereafter
referred to as “the Parties™), through their authorized representatives.
IL PREAMBLE
As a preamble to this Agreement, the Partics egree to the following:

A, Chesapeake Youth Center, Inc, (“Chesapeake Youth Center”) is a Maryland
corporation, From the date of its organization until in er eround September 2006, Chesapeake
Youth Center operated a residential treatment fﬁcﬂity that was located originelly on the old
campus of the Fastern Shore Hospital Center, then moved temporarily to the grounds of Spring
Grove and, in 1999, mov,ec_i‘ to a new facility located at 821 Fieldcrest Lane, Cambridge,.
Maryland. 21613. Dgring the i_ast sevérél years of itg qperatioﬁ, Chesapeake Youth Center

operated a 59-bed residential treatment center for adolescents.

B.  On or about December 20, 2005 and May 9, 2006, the United States ard State of
Maryland issued subpoenas duces fecum to Chesapeake Youth Center seeking the production

of documents from Janvary 1, 2002, to the date of the subpoena, including documents relating to |

Chesapeake Youth Center’s (1} legal and organizational structure, (2) directors, officers,
pariners, managers, and exeéuitivé:s, (3) finances and ﬁnéncial‘performance, (4) health care
operations (including patient charts and seclusion and restraints records) (5) board of directors’
meetings, (6) internal surveys, r’e:;éorté, and éomplainié_, B reports, memoranda, gorrespondence
and ethef documents from various gocreditation, licensing, and regulatory entities regarding its
health eare services and mpsrétinﬁs; (8) provider agreements with Medicaid aﬁd.Medioa:;e, and
clectronic billing p,rovic-ler agfeéméhts,'@)- di'arieé, calendars, date books, schedules, and phone
records, and (10) computers and computer records, In respunse to the subpoenas, Chesapeake

Youth Center produced approximately 82 banker’s boxes of doctiments.




C. Under Title 10, Code of Maryland Regulations, Chapter 7, the Office of Health

Care Quzﬂity (“OHCQ™) for the State of Maryland licenses and regnlates residential treatment

centers for adolescents,

. The United States and the State of Maryland contend that Chesapeake Youth
Center submitted or caused to be submitted claims for payment to the Mediéaid Program
(Medicaid), Title XVII of the Soclal Security Act, 42 US.C. §% 1396-1396v for the treatment
of the residents of Chesapealke Youth Center,

E. To be enttticd to recei\ze rc1mburse1n¢nt ﬁtmn Medicaid for services provided at a
residential treatment center for adolescents, the center must provide inpatient psychiatric serviees
for the diagnosis, active tccatment, and care of residents uader 21 years of age with mental
diseases and those psychiafric services must be medically necessary, performed under the
direetion. of a physician, certified as necessary by an admissions team before the recipient’s
adimission fo the residential treatment center, and certified as necessary by the team developing
the individual plan .of care and for the treatment of a mental illness. Code of Maryland
Regulations (COMAR) 10.09.29.04. Pursuant to COMAR 10.09.29.01 .01 and Code of Federal
Regulation 42 C.FR. § 441.154, “active treatment” is defined as care provided pursuant to the

implementation of a professionally developed and supervised individual plan of care.

E. The United States and the State of Maryland contend that they have certain civil
claims, ag specified in Paragraph 2 below, against Chesapeake Youth Center for knowingly
submitting, or causing to be submmed to Medicaid for the period January 2005 through July
2005 clatms for adolescent psych!atrio services (o the 1651::1@1}1"» in the Blue Heron Unit (hat were

not pmmded or were substandard or worthiess (hereinafter as the “Covered Conduct.”)

G. The United States and the State of Maryland also contend that they have certain
administrative olaims, as specified i Paragraphs 2 and 3 below, against Chesapeake Youth
Center for engaging in the Covered Conduct,

H.  This Agreement is neither an admission of liability by Chesapeake Youth
Center not a concession by the United States and the State of Maryland that their claims are not
well founded. | - |
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L Chesapeake Youth CGenter denies that it kmowiﬁg,ly submitted or caused to be
submitted to Medicaid from Tanimty 2005 Hitdlish July 2005 clafms for adolescent psvehiatric
services to the residents in the Blue Heron Unit that were not provided or were substandard or
worthless,

1. To avoid the-delay, uncertainty, inconvenienoe, and expense of protracted
litigation of the above claims, the Parties have reached a full and final settlement pursuant to the
Terms and Congitions set forth below.

I : ND GO}

1. Chesapeake Youth Centel agrees to pay t{) thc United States $259,120

(the "Settlernent Amount™) by elcctromc funds transfer pursuant to wriiten instructions to be
provided by the United States Attorney’s Office for the District of Maryland. Chesapeake Youth
Center agrees to make this electronic funds transfer within fifteen (15) days after the Effective

Date of this Agreement.

2. Subject 1o the exceptions in Paragraph 4 below (concerning excluded
claims), in consideration of the obligétions of Chesapeake Youth Center in this Agreement,
conditioned upon Chesapeake Youth Center's full payment of the Settlement Amount and
subject to Paragraph 12 belaw (concerning bankruptey proceedings commenced within 91 days
of the Effective Date of this Agrsezhﬂﬂt or apy paymént made un_ciér this Agreement), the United
States (on behalf of itself, its officers, agents, agencies, and departments) and the State of
Maryland (on behalf of itgelf, its officers, agents, agencies and departmenis) agree to release
Chesapeale Yonth Center and ifs parents, Qfﬁcers, dxrectors agem:s servants, and employess
from any eivil or administrative mmnetary claim the United States and/or the State of Maryland
have or may have for the Covered Contiucg including claims under the False Claims Act, 31
US.C, §§ 3729- 3733, the Civil que;tary Penaltics Law, 42 U.S,C. § 1320a-7a, the Program
Fraud Civil Remedies Act, 31 U.S.C. §§ 3801-3812, the Maryland Medicaid Fraud Act, Md.,
Code Am., CL § 8308 ef seg., or the common law theories payment by mistake, unjust

enrichment, and faud.

3. OIG-HHS expressly reserves all rights to institute, direct, or to maintain

any adminisirative action seeking exelusion against Chesapeake Youth Center andfor its




officers, directors, and employees_from Medicare, Medicaid, and all other. Federal health care
Programs (as defiried i 42 US.C, § 13 {1} i)} under 42 1U.8,C. § 1320a-7(z) (mendatory
exclusion), or 42 U. 8 C. § 1320a-7(6) or 42 U.8.C. 1320a-7a (permissive exclusion),

4, Notwithstanding any term of this Agreement, specifically reserved and
exciuded from the scope and terms of-this Agreement as to any entity or*pers.én {including
Chesapeake Youth Center) are the following claiims of the United States and the State of
Maryland:

(s} Any civil, criminal, or adminisirative liability arising under Title
26, 1.5, Code (Interngl Revenue Code);

{b)  Any criminal liability;

(¢}  Exeept as explicitly stated in this Agreement, any administrative

liability, including mandatory exclusion from Federal health-care programs;

() Any Hability to the United States (or its agencies) and the State of
Maryiand for any conduct other than the Covered Conduet;

(&) Any Tiabil ity based upon such obligations as are created by this
Agreement, ' -

' ' {f) Any habzhty for -personal injury; vroperty da,mage or other
consequential damages to third parties arising from the Covered Conduot; and '

(2)  Any eivil or administrative liability of individuals (including
current or former directors, officers, emplayges, agents, ot shareholders of Chesapeake Youth
Center) whé receive written ﬁqtiiﬁcgﬁbu that they are thé target of a criminal investigation (as
defined m the ﬁnited States &ttom@ys’- Manual), are indicted, charged, or convicted, or who

enter into a piea agresment related to the Covered Conduct.

5. Chesapeake Youth Center wajves and shall not assert any defenses
Chesapeake Youth Cenfer- may-héve to any criminal. prosecution or administrative action
relating to the Covewd Conduet that may bebased in whols or in part en a contention that, under
the Double Feopardy Clause in the Fiﬂth Amendment of Lhe Constitution, or under the Bxcessive

Fines Clause in the Eighth Amendment of the Constitution, this Agreement bars a remedy sought




A T

in such. crimina} prosecution or adminisirative action. Nothing in this Paragraph or any other

recmént cotstitutes an apredment by thie United States concerning the

provision of ‘this;

éharaﬁtefiza;:j,cén Gfthe SettiementAmount for purposes of the Internal Revene laws, Title 26 of
the United States Code.

6, Cliesapealce ?puth Center fully and finally releases the United States
end the State of- Maryland' thcir‘ agéi‘ic‘fies, empleyees, servants; and agents from any claims
(including attemeys “fées, costs; -anid expénses of § gvety kingd and however denominated) that
Chesapealke Yonth Center e asserted, conld-have asqerted ar may. assert in the fatare agamst
the Umted States and! the State of Maryland, their agenoles employees, servants, and agsnts,
related to the Covered (L‘ondu.ot_and_ the United Stz_;tes, and_the State of Maryland's investigation
and prosecution thereof, PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that Chesapeake Youth Centei’ does not

release amy claim relating to applicable Medlcaid cost report audits,

7. The Seftlement Amdunt. shall not be decreased as a result of the denial of
claims for payment now Bez:n_g wtthhalﬁ. from payment by any Med-icare carrier ar intermediary
or any state payer related fo the Covered Conduet; and Chesapeake Youth Center agrees not {o
resubmit to any Medicare carrisr ot mtermed;my or any state payer any previously denied claims

w!ated, to the Covered Conduct, and agreées not to appesal aiy such denials of claims,
&. Chesapeake Youih Center agrees to the following:

“{a)  Unsllowable Costs Defined: that all costs (as defined in the Federal
Acquisition Regulation, 48 CFR, §§ 31.205-47; and i Titles XVHI and XIX of the Social
Security Act, 42 US.C, §§ 1395- 13‘95111121 and 1396-1396v; aﬁd the regulations and official
program. directives promuigat@d ﬂwmundm) incurred by or oh behalf of Chesapeake Youth
Center, its present or former officets, diveciors, amp]oyees sharahoiders and agents in
c;enn@ction with tl;e-failqwmg, _shal_i' be "Unaliowable Costs" on gwemment contracts and uader
the Medicate Program, Medicaid Program, TRICARE Program, and Federal Employees Health
Benefits Program (FEHBP):

(i)  the United States' eivil investigation of the matters covered

by this Agreement;
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E

(ij) Chesapeake Youth Center's _investigation, defense, and

cerreciwe actions: unde {3 ‘Spaﬂse to the United States’ civil mvesitgation

. cannacﬁon witth the maﬁc;rs cwemd by ﬂus Agwement (mciudmg attorney's fess);
(i)  the negotiation and performance of this Agreement; and

{iv)  the payment Chesapeake Youth Centef makes ¢ the
United States pursuant 1o this Agreement, including costs and attorney’s fees. .

(by  Euture Tregtmont.of Unallowable Costs: These Unallowable Costs

shall be separstely  detemningd and accounted for in npmreimbursable cost cemters by

Chesapeake Youth Center, and Clicsapeake Youth Center shall not charge such Unallowable
Costs directly or indirectly to any contracts with the United States or any State Medicaid
program, or seek payment for such Unallowable Costs through any cost repart, cost statement,
information statement, or payment request submitted by Chesapeake Youth Center or any. of its
subsidinries or affiliates to the Medicare, Medicaid, TRICARE, or FEHBP Programs.

{¢)  Lreatzment of Unallowable Costs Previously Submitted for
Payment: Chesapeake Youth Centor further agrees that within 90 days of the Tiffective Date of
this Agreement it shall identify to applicable Medicare and TRICARE fiscal intermediaries,

cartiers, and/or contractors, and Medicaid and FEHBP fiscal agents, any Unallowable Costs (as
defined in this Paragraph) ineluded. in payments previously sought ‘ﬁ_‘am the United States, or any
State Mﬁdicﬁid pﬁg}‘mm including, but not limited to, payments sought in any coét repotts, cost
statements, information reports, or payment requests already submitted by Chesapeale Youth
Center or any of its subsidiaries or éfﬁliaies, and shall request,.and agree, that such cost reports,
cost statements, mfonnation rﬁpoﬂs, or payment Tequests, even if elready settfed, be adiusted to
acsount. for the' effect of thf: mclusmn of the unaliewable costs. Chasapeake Youtl Center

the mclusmn af such Unaﬂowab B Cosss an prevmusiy—submrtted eost reports, information reports,

coSt statements, or reguests: ﬁ)l:-payment Anypayments due-afier the adjustnents have been mads shall

be.paid to the United States atid/or the State of Meryland pursant to the direction of the Department of

Justice and/or the qﬁected agericies. The United States and the State of Maryiand reserve thelr rights to
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-disagree with any calzulations- submitied by
affiliates on ‘the effact of mciusion of
Chesapeake Ynuth Center or any af

hesapeake Youth Center or any of its subsidiaries or
ligwab e,:Costs {8s defined in. this Paragraph) on
ils substd1a1ms ar affiliates’ cost reports, cost staternents, or

information reports,

(&  Nothing in-this Agteement shall consiitute & waiver of the rights of
the United States or. the State QfMaf}'*Iahd to- aii'dit, exam'inc, or rswexamine Ghesapeake Youth

aocordance with the. p.rc:wmns of tl-ns :P-ar@grﬁph-

g. This Agreement is intended to be for the benefit of the Parties only, The
Parties do not release any claims against any- other person o entity, except as otherwise provided

in this Agreement,

10.  Chesapeake Youth Center agrees that it waives and shall not seek
payment for any heatth care billings covered by this Agreement from any health care beneficiaries
or their parents, sponsors, legally responsible individuals, or any non-governmentzl payors based

upon the claims defined as. Covered Conduet. -

1. The Parties warrant that, in evaluating whether to execute this Agreement,
they (a) have intended that the mutual promises, covenants, and obligations set forth constitute a
contemporaneous excharige for nevr value given to Chesapeale Youth Center, within the
meaning of 11 U.S8.C. § 547(¢)(1); and (b} conglude that these mutual promises, covenants, and
obligations do, in fact, constitute such a contemporaneous exchange. Further, the Parties warrant
that the mutual promises, covenants, and obligations set forth herein are intended to and do, in

fact, represent a re_asgngbly;:g_[_i;iﬁﬁi_lg;&iéxchaﬁgﬁ of valug that is not intended to hinder, delay, or

defraud any entity-to which €hésapeake Youth Center was or became indebted to on or afier
the date of this teafister, wittiin: the mesning of 11 U.S.C. § 548()(1).

12, If within 91.days of the Effective Date of this Agreement or of any
payment made under this Agreement, Chesapeake Youth Center commenoss, or a third party

conimences, any case, proceeding, or other action urder any law relating to bankruptoy,

inselvency, reorganizatiqmj or relief of debtors (1) seeking to have any order for relief of
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.zrffrechesapeake ‘Yauth Center's debts or sagking to adjudmatc Chesapeake “Youth Center as
§"_5bankmpt By | o : j
-similai o

i

Che ”peake Youlh Centel of for a,ll ot any mbstantlal part of Chesapeake
meth Can ter’s assets Cilesapeake Youth Center agrees as foIlaws

(a)  Chiesapgake Youth Center's obligations under this Agreement
Inay not be avmded pursuant to 11.T; S C, §-547; and-Chesapeake Youth Center shall not arpue
or etbermse ?talce the posmon in‘any such case, praceedmg, or action that: () Chesapeake

Youth Cex
Chesapeake - Youth. Center: was. insolvent at the time this Agreement was entered iato, ot
became dngalvent as a result of the pa}{m(énf made to the United States; or (i) the mutual

s gbh_ggtmns ur;dqr‘,fah;s__ég_}wment ma;f bf;,,avq;ded under 11 U.S.C. § 547; (iD)

promises, covenants, and obligations set forth in this Agresment do not constitufe a
contemporaneous exchange for new value given to Chesapeake Youth Center,

) If Qh@ap_aa{ke_ Youth Center's obligations under this Agreement
are avoided for any reason, includifig, but not limited to, through the .exercise of a trustes's
avoidanee. powers under: the Barkiuptey: Code, and if & third party does not within thirty (30)
days @ﬁgr,;gu(gl avoidance satisfy Chesapeuke Youth Center's obligations under this Agresment
by paying the United 'Stataé;mé-SetﬁTeméﬂt_r Amouynt, the Unifed States, af ifs sole option, may

rescind the releages in- thi’s,-Agrcéméﬁtjm‘d bring agy civil andfor administrative claim, action, or

proceeding agaiﬁ_s’,t‘- Chesapeake Yeoiith I_Z'{:‘lﬁer for the claims that would ‘offierwise be covered
by the release provided in Patagraph 2, above. Chesapéke Youth Center sgrees that () any

~ such c:lmms actions, or prooaedmgs braught by the Umted States (including any proceedmgs to

exu!ude Cbesapeake Youtl Center’ from participation § in Medmam, Medicaid, ot other Federal
health- care pzog-*ams)--are net subject--to an "automatic -sta—y” pursuant to 11 U.8.C, § 362(a) as a
result of the achan case, or- preceedmgs descmbed in the first clause of this Paragraph, and

3 ! th 'Center shall not argue or et!}erwxse contend that the United Staics' claims,
acﬁ@ns, o1 pmceedmgs dre. subject to-an aiftoritio Chesapeake Youth Center sha]i fiot
plead, argus, or oﬂwrw*i se Talse any defenses under the theones of statute of limitations, Iaches
estoppel, or snnﬂau thcones o any. such cmT or admm:st:atwe claims, actions, or ptoceedmg

that are- bmnghi by the Umte:d States within 30 ualendar days of written nofification to

.Cl:,esgp,eake_ifoqt?x ‘Center that the-releases have been rescinded pussuant to this Paragraph,




~exeept to the extent such defenses were aveilable on the effective date of the.Agreement; and (ifi)
uut’h Center in the amount of §777,360 plus

the United: States hasa claim agaifis

penaities 156 detemmed by the Cistt,. aud-'tha Umt@d States may. pursue ils cleim in the cass,
action, or-proceeding referenced i the first clause of this. Pa1 agraph, 8s weIl as in any other case,

action, o proceeding.

(e} Ghe_g.gpﬁgka Youth Center acknowledges that its agreemenis in
this Paragraph are provided in exchange:for valuable consideration provided in this Agreement.

13.  Exvept as expressly provided to the contrary in this Agreement, each Party

shall bear its own legal and other costs incurred in conpection with this matter, including the

preparation and performange of this Agpeement,

14.  Chesapeake Youth Center represents that this Agreement is freely and

voluntarily entered into without any degree of duress or compulsion whatsoever,

15, This Agreement is governed by the laws of the United States. The parties
agree thaf the exchusive jurisdik:t_ié;n .énd verme for any dispute arising between and among the
Parties under this Agreement is the United States District Court for the District of Maryland.

16.  For porposes ef construction, this Agreement shall be deemed to have
been drafted by all Parties to this Agreement and shall not, therefore, be eonstrued against any
Party for that reason in any subsequent dispute.

17 This Agreement constitules the complete agreement between the Parties.

This Agreement may not bi’: amended except by writien consent of the Parties.

18. The indiiviiduals-'f signing. this Agreement on behalf of Chesapeake Youth
Center. represent and warra:s:(t fhist: they ate drithorized by Chiesapeake Youth Center o exeotie

this Agreeingnt. The Umteel States, g __the State of Magyland. signatories represe:nt that they are
signing this Agreement in ther official capacities and-that they are authonzed to execute this

Agreemnent,

19,  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which

congtifutes.an original and atl of whicly censtitute one and the same Agreement.




inding on and inures to the benofit of Chesapeake

" Youth Center's sucoessors, traisferves, el

21, All parties. conseni to the United States and the State of Maryland's
disclosure of this Agrecment, and informetion about this Agrsement o the public.

22.  This Agraement is effective on the date the fully executed Agreement
-shall have been received by the-undersighed counsel for Chiesapeake Youth Center (Effective
Date of thm Agrcement), Lamen;ce s. G'reenwa}d or Cathering A. Bledsoe. Facsmnles of
slgnatutes shaH constitute acceptable, binding signatures for purpeses of this Agresment,

[SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE]
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Attachment 8

Part IV. Consistency with General Review
Criteria at COMAR 10.24.01.08G(3), parts a-c



PART IV — CONSISTENCY WITH GENERAL REVIEW CRITERIA AT
COMAR 10.24.01.08G(3):

10.24.01.08G(3)(a) The State Health Plan

The only relevant section of the State Health Plan is COMAR 10.24.07G (Interim
Residential Treatment Capacity), which was adopted as Supplement 14 to the chapter on
Psychiatric Services effective June 30, 1997, almost two decades ago. Many provisions in
this section are now out-of-date, and it seems highly unlikely that the Commission
intended the 1997 plan for “inferim” (which, according to the Oxford Desk Dictionary,
means “provisional; temporary™) RTC capacity to apply to this service in 2016 and
beyond.

We address that section below, while noting that some of its provisions are now clearly
obsolete.

COMAR 10.24.07
G. Interim Residential Treatment Center Capacity.
(1) Core Principles

(a) A seamless child and adolescent mental health system that offers a
comprehensive continuum should be available in Maryland.

The Right Moves will, if approved, provide a highly specialized clinical service that will
fill a gap in the current child and adolescent mental health system in Maryland.
Chesapeake Treatment Centers, Inc. is requesting approval for the conversion of § beds
from the already existing 29 beds at New Directions to the new service, The Right
Moves. New Directions, a 29-bed hardware-secure Residential Treatment Center on the
grounds of the Charles H. Hickey School, is the only licensed Residential Treatment
Center in Maryland that is located “behind the fence™ and the only Residential Treatment
Center in Maryland that is exclusively dedicated to Maryland Department of Juvenile
Services (DJS) referrals.

Since it was established in 2000, the New Directions program has focused on the
comprehensive treatment of youth ages 14 through 20 who have diagnoses of sexual
disorders and misconduct in addition to other complex mental health, substance abuse,
family, learning and legal problems. During the last four years, the average daily census
at the facility has decreased because of the expansion by DJS of community-based
outpatient programs for young sexual offenders, a general decrease in numbers of young
sexual offenders who required the RTC level of care, and the addition of other types of
community-based resources such as transitional housing, family outreach services, etc.
The average daily census for the facility for the last four years has been fairly consistent:
2011 - ADC 21 patients; 2012 — ADC 18 patients; 2013 — ADC 21 patients; and 2014 —
ADC 21 patients. However, since New Directions is a small facility with only 29 beds,



occupancy of 90% and above 1s ideal in order to remain cost efficient.

During that same four-year period, the administration and clinical team members at New
Directions identified a gap in the continuum of mental health services for DJS youth that
was not being filled in Maryland. Discussions with Maryland DJS leadership confirmed
the following need: Each year 8 or more DJS-committed youth, ages 18 through 20, are
being placed in out-of-state Psychiatric Treatment Residential Facilities. These older
youth are rejected by providers within Maryland because of several reasons: the youths’
transitional age; the multiplicity of problems they exhibit; and/or safety issues posed to
the community. There currently does not exist in Maryland a facility or program that is
both hardware and staff secure and that is expressly designed to treat this special
population in need.

New Directions administration and clinicians at the facility are interested in providing a
new and highly specialized treatment track/program, called The Right Moves, for those
older males currently placed out of state. After numerous discussions and meetings with
DIJS leadership, our clinicians and administrative leadership worked collaboratively to
create a treatment “track”™ that will provide a quality and effective multi-faceted program
in a secure and safe facility. The Right Moves will allow DJS to bring back those older
youth currently in out-of-state placements and will also afford DJS the opportunity to
place within Maryland future referrals who meet the criteria for admission and who
would otherwise be placed out of state. It is important to note here that DJS will function
as the gatekeeper and referral source for the older youth referred to the program.

(b) In-state resources should be developed to meet the mental health
needs of children and adolescents.

The Right Moves program, located in Baltimore, Maryland, will, if the Certificate of
Need is approved, be established to meet a very specific mental health need of a very
unique group of older youth who need in-state treatment. If not approved, the target
population discussed within this proposal will continue to be placed far away from home,
family and their DJS case managers, since they cannot readily and effectively be treated
in the community or in a “regular” Residential Treatment Center. (See discussion under
subsection (a) above.)

(c) The Maryland child and adolescent mental health system should
evaluate the efficacy of programs based upon outcome measures.

New Directions 1s considered by the Maryland Department of Juvenile Services to be an
extremely effective Residential Treatment program. One measure of successful
outcomes for any Residential Treatment Center is the number of successful graduates of
the RTC. More than 90% of patients admitted to New Directions have successfully
completed the program. Of those youth discharged and monitored by DIS over a five-
year period (post discharge), more than §5% of New Directions graduates did not have
any further legal charges against them, and of those who did have other legal charges,



none of those charges involved a sexual offense.

The clinicians at New Directions will utilize their long and collective yehrs of successful
work with DJS youth in implementing the new program. As reflected in the Certificate
of Need documentation, The Right Moves will be an individualized, strengths-based, and
solution-oriented program. As with New Directions, the clinical team at The Right
Moves will work in close collaboration with the Department of Juvenile Services to
monitor program quality and outcomes. Based on the “track record” of the current
clinical team, the outcomes for The Right Moves will demonstrate that the new program
will fulfill expectations from DJS regarding the success of The Right Moves graduates.

(2) Bed Need.

The bed-need methodology in the 1997 plan is clearly out-of-date. It only addresses RTC
units to be approved during CY 1997 and CY 1998. It stated that the “Subcabinet will
supply to the Commission revised data to update the bed need”, but the bed need was
never updated. Moreover, it states that the units must be located “in special hospital-
psychiatric facilities with excess capacity” and that the units must be “dually licensed as
special psychiatric hospital and RTC beds”. This is no longer possible, because in-2001
CMS issued regulations which established Psychiatric Residential Treatment Facilities
(“PRTFs”) as a new category of Medicaid facility eligible for reimbursement under the
Medicaid under-21 benefit. Those regulations define a PRTF as “a facility other than a
hospital, that provides psychiatric services, as described in Subpart D of part 441 of this
chapter, to individuals under the age of 21, in an inpatient setting”. 42 CFR § 483.352
(emphasis added). A unit licensed as part of a special psychiatric hospital would not meet
this definition and would therefore be ineligible for Medicaid certification as a PRTF,
something which is required by the State Health Plan in COMAR 10.24.07G(3)(g).

(3) Commission will use the following standards to review applications to
provide residential treatment center care.

(a)  Need. Each applicant shall document the need for residential

treatment center care in the community it intends to serve, consistent
with G(2)(a)-(e) above.

The Right Moves program will fulfill an urgent need for a small and unique population
identified by the Maryland Department of Juvenile Services as in need.

In its February 18, 2015 Response to the Juvenile Justice Monitoring Unit’s 2014 Annual
Reportl, DIJS stated:

Despite the success evidenced by falling crime rates and Department
reforms 1n driving down detention populations, a population of committed
youth still remains in committed programs out of state due to not having
appropriate programming space in Maryland to accommodate them. The

" Juvenile Justice Monitoring Unit, Office of the Attorney General, 2014 Annual Report, pp. 44-45.
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Department is obligated to serve these youth committed by the court
in a setting determined by the court. In order to meet the security level
and treatment needs of these vouth, the Department must contract for out
of state services. Our view is that it 1s far better for those youth to
be treated in Maryland rather than an out of state program and
therefore, we will continue to explore ways to meet that need with
services located in Maryland.

In the FY2014 Out-of-Home Placement Report and Resource Guide?, DJS stated:

DIJS has in recent years increased capacity to serve higher-risk youth who
may have in previous years been either placed in out-of-State non-
community-based placements or in Maryland non-secure community-
based residential programs - often with unsuccessful outcomes. ... One
of the drivers of pending-placement populations has been the youth
who had been placed into non-secure programs, only to be sent back to
detention from programs that were not equipped to manage behavior.

A large portion of secure placement options for committed youth
continues to be in out-of-State programs, and the placement process
for these youth has often led to long stays in detention for youth
requiring secure placement.

The Right Moves program will be able to admit patients currently out of state and future
patients who would otherwise be sent out of state, because The Right Moves program
will be located in an existing Residential Treatment facility which is staff and hardware
secure, licensed, approved by The Joint Commission, and considered by the Department
to be a highly effective and quahty fac111ty

The older male w1thm the DIS system who exhibits a multiplicity of mental health,
substance abuse and other problems in every life domain requires the kind of particularly
focused array of services that The Right Moves will provide. The Right Moves will
exclusively serve older male adolescents ages 18 through 20 referred by the Maryland
Department of Juvenile Services for treatment in the program. These older youth exhibit
a complex constellation of mental health, substance abuse and/or co-occurring disorders
in addition to serious problems in every life domain. These young men are ill-equipped
to function successfully either in an independent living situation or at home despite a
history of numerous treatment interventions and previous placements.

Inits 2013 Services Gap Analysis®, DJS stated:

There is a shortage in capacity to serve boys in Level IH programs.

% Governor’s Office for Chiidren, FY2014 State of Maryland Out-of-Home Placement and Family
Preservation Resource Plan, DJS Summary at pp. 43-44.

* Maryland Department of Juvenile Services Residential and Community-Based Services Gap Analysis
{12/31/2013), p. 3.



Whereas 135-138 boys are projected to require Level I1I programming on
any given day, there is currently only one hardware secure program in
Maryland that serves 48 boys. An assessment of boys’ needs indicates
that Level III programming should address the continuum of
behavioral health needs with emphasis on alcohol and drug use, family
functioning, aggression, and mental health. These findings are also
supported by an analysis of boys who were placed in programs
outside of Maryland in FY'12 and FY13.

The DJS Capital Improvement Plan includes two male secure treatment centers,
Baltimore Regional Treatment Center and Cheltenham Treatment Center, to address the
need for Level [1/hardware secure residential programming. However, these two
facilities would not be certified as PRTFs and would not be eligible for Medicaid
reimbursement. While these two new DJS facilities would, if constructed, be able to
provide services to youth who would otherwise be placed in non-PRTF facilities out of
state, they would not be able to provide services to youth who would otherwise be placed
in PRTF facilities out of state. On average, there are 8 to 10 Maryland youth placed by
DIS in out-of-state PRTFs. Thus is the population which The Right Moves would serve.

Although there are community-based outpatient levels of care available for some older
DIS youth throughout the State, logistical accessibility issues and chaotic home
environments (in which the family is unable to provide the support, structure and
supervision needed) can adversely affect attendance and the ability to achieve positive
positive results from participation in those outpatient levels of care. The new program
will provide that support, structure and supervision.

The Right Moves does not require the creation of new residential treatment beds. The
program will, instead, utilize already existing beds in a facility that is “behind the fence”
at the Charles Hickey site and can, therefore, admit highly challenged youth who need
placement that will keep them safe and the community safe while they receive the
specialized treatment that they require to become habilitated. The proven success record
of Chesapeake Treatment Centers, Inc. contributes to the premise that the target
population identified for the new service will be best served by CTC in filling the
bed/program need identified by DJS.

The need for the special population to be served by The Right Moves is clear, as
evidenced by the information provided within this document and by the support of the
Maryland Department of Juvenile Services leadership. The community of patients served
will be older youth who reside throughout the state but who need a central, single
program of treatment within State boundaries.

There is currently a vacuum in the services system available in Maryland for those youth
ages 18 to 20 with histories of failed placements that can fully address their complex
clinical needs before they can live productively and independently in the community. It
has been the intent of the Maryland Governor’s Children’s Cabinet for several years to
support programs that focus on problem reduction and on fully preparing youth for adult



roles and responsibilities and becoming constructive, contributing members of their
communities.

DJS leadership has become increasingly concerned over the last four vears about the
number of older youth consistently placed out of state. These youngsters are rejected by
many of the RTCs throughout Maryland because of their transitional age and/or because
of complex clinical issues. As documented in data for the last four years published by
DIJS, there are, at any given time, eight to ten older youth in out-of-state placements who
could be treated in Maryland if the appropriate level of care with a specifically tailored
program was available. The Right Moves will offer DIS the ideal setting for the older
male in need. By utilizing already existing space in a facility that has an already existing
experienced, qualified and quality clinical team, the target population of young men who
will be admitted to the program will receive the very focused array of services they need
in State, thereby saving DJS a great deal of money while ensuring optimal treatment and
agency and family involvement and accessibility.

(b)Y  Sex Specific Programs. Each applicant shall document sex-specific
programs, and provide a separate therapeutic environment and, to
the extent necessary, a separate physical environment consistent with
the treatment needs of each group it proposes to serve.

The Right Moves is designed for older male adolescents ages 18 through 20 exclusively
referred to the program by the Maryland Department of Juvenile Services. As described
above in the Comprehensive Project Description, CTC will provide programmatic
elements that are specific to the gender and ages of the patients served. Additionally, the
physical plant organization, program components and scheduling will be designed to
provide a safe and secure therapeutic milieu for the patients. The 29 beds at the facility
are dedicated to serving only male patients 14 through 20.

(c) Special Clinical Needs. Each applicant shall document treatment
programs for those youth with a coexisting mental health [condition]
and a developmental disability.

As described above in the Comprehensive Project Description, the strengths, problems
and issues of each patient are considered in the development of each patient’s Individual
Treatment Plan. The significant majority of the youth in the older male population
referred for treatment will have a co-occurring mental health and substance abuse
disorder, and the program will provide mental health and substance abuse assessments
and treatment (see Program Description). The New Directions program has successfully
treated patients with mild developmental disabilities, and The Right Moves will also
admit and treat patients in the target population who exhibit mild developmental
disabilities.

(d)  Minimum Services. Each applicant shall propose and document
services which include, at a minimum: patient supervision,



assessment, screening, evaluation including psychiatric evaluation,
psychological testing and individual treatment plan; ward activities;
individual, group, and family treatment; patient and family
education; medication management; treatment planning; case
management; placement and aftercare/discharge planning.

The Right Moves will provide a comprehensive array of services, including all of those
listed above as “minimum services”. See the Comprehensive Project Description above.

As discussed in that section, The Right Moves will offer a multi-faceted, solution-
oriented, and creative treatment system that will be highly individualized. Because older
youth need a major focus on completing their education, pursuing a career path, and
accessing housing in their home communities, participation in the New Directions
Academy will be an important component of treatment. A comprehensive array of
assessments will be utilized to evaluate each patient’s family history and projected
placement post-discharge. The clinical team will explore how and if the patient can be
reconnected with his family through the team’s work with each family. The Right Moves
clinical team and DJS case managers and supervisors will coordinate treatment, discharge
and transition for the patients. :

With the older patient population, it is essential to establish treatment and placement
goals from the first day of referral, because much must be accomplished in a relatively
short period of time (ALOS — nine months).

~ Treatment Components will include a variety of evidence-based treatment models and
will include a wide array of other therapeutic and educational/vocational components
including:

e Psychiatric assessment, mental health therapy and medication management

s Substance Use Disorders assessment, treatment and education

e History, physical and nursing assessments and ongoing 24 hour/7 day per week
nursing services available

¢ Individualized Treatment

e Individual, Group and Family counseling and therapy

¢ Structured family education and counseling program with flexible hours available
to provide easy access

¢ (ase Management

¢ Positive Behavioral Interventions including a Peer Support Culture

e Educational assessment and participation in the New Directions Academy with
the goal of attaining a high school diploma or a G.E.D.

¢ Vocational assessments, programming and vocational program placement

¢ Evidence-based model of care, including Cognitive Behavioral Therapy (CBT),
Motivational Enhancement Therapy (MET), and Recovery Oriented Systems of
Care (ROSC)

e Career exploration and planning _

¢ Job preparedness and help with job search with the goal of each resident holding a



viable job prior to discharge
¢ Community services program with residents volunteering in, e.g., the animal
sanctuary, “soup kitchen”, etc.
¢ Competency, Life Skills and Character Development curriculum
e Special interest and gender specific groups will include: conflict resolution, health
education, anger management, violence prevention, accountability and
responsibility, etc.
Victim awareness curriculum
Nutritional and diet planning
Physical health and training ‘
Parenting classes for those youth with children
Cultural awareness with field trips to local museums, cultural events, etc.
Art and music activities
Recreation and sports activities on grounds
Identification of community resources that are specifically designed to support the
gains made for each individual upon discharge :
e Discharge and Continuing Care planning
e Participation in and collaboration with the DJS monitoring and outcomes systems

All treatment modalities offered will be high-interest, evidence-based, and will
emphasize the acquisition of fresh skills and exposure to new areas of interest and
opportunity. Clinical team members will assist the residents to overcome the debilitating
lack of motivation that can typify the older adolescent population, including feelings of
hopelessness and a lack of regard for one’s future, one’s family and one’s community.

Communication is considered key by the clinical staff at the facility. The individual
therapists maintain consistent and ongoing communication with DJS case managers,
parents, guardians and all other community-based resources personnel who are mvolved
with the patient. Prior to discharge, the program therapists will connect the patient to
community-based resource personnel who will provide support services to the youth
upon discharge. Appointments with community-based SUD counseling and mental
health professionals are made before discharge and the transitioning patient is taken to
those appointments while still a patient at The Right Moves. This process ensures that
the patient will form a positive therapeutic relationship with the community-based care-
giver and will begin counseling in his home community prior to the discharge date.

The clinical team at CTC are extremely enthusiastic about establishing The Right Moves
since we believe that this program can fill a much-needed gap in services and will
support those goals and objectives embodied in the Governor’s Office for Children report
Ready by 21: An Action Agenda for Children (2007) and in the Maryland Child and
Family Services Interagency Strategic Plan (2008) - to provide and enbance effective
community-based programs that will effectively prepare all young Maryland residents to
function successfully, healthfully, and productively in the community and to make
positive contributions to their communities.



(e) Treatment Planning and Family Involvement. Each applicant shall
document that the required minimum services will be provided by a
coordinated multi-disciplinary treatment team that addresses daily
living skills within a group setting; family involvement in treatment to
the greatest extent possible, restoration of family functioning; and any
other specialized areas that the individualized diagnostic and
treatment process reveals is necessary for the patient and family.

Family Involvement - The Right Moves clinicians will assess each patient’s family
situation and with the support of the DIS case manager specialist, will involve the family
in counseling sessions and, if possible, in a multi-family support group. Additionally,
clinicians will refer parents/guardians to other community-based resources that will be
helpful to the family system.

We view family counseling and therapy for The Right Moves patients as a vehicle to
build new channels of communication between the patient and family members; to assist
with the family’s self-identification of dysfunctional patterns of family behavior; and to
educate and guide parents and guardians so that the family unit may become healthier.
We consider family therapy as an important component of treatment, whether or not the
patient will be returning to live with his family.

Important to the success of The Right Moves program will be the availability of the
clinicians to parents/guardians generally and especially in crisis situations. The Right
Moves clinicians will be available to the family in need. The nurses at the facility are on
call at the nurse’s station 24 hours a day, seven days per week, and will contact the
individual patient’s therapist as appropriate. All emergency situations will be
immediately reported to the DJS case manager specialist either during regular business
hours or through the emergency line provided by DIS.

The Right Moves will provide in-home services or transportation through its
transportation system at no cost for those parents and guardians who have no access to
private transportation to the facility: For those families, the individual therapist will
arrange for a counseling session to take place the same day as the patient’s family visit.

Consistent weekly communication will take place by telephone between the individual
therapist and the parents or guardians. The parents and guardians will be actively
solicited to participate in construction of the initial Treatment Plan and in treatment
planning meetings all throughout the patient’s stay. Updates of all treatment plans will
take place once per month.

The Biopsychosocial assessment will be an essential component of the Individual
Treatment Plan for each patient. The initial Treatment Plan will be constructed within
the first two weeks after admission by The Right Moves multidisciplinary clinical team.

An important contributor to the full Biopsychosocial assessment and the Treatment Plan
is the utilization of historical data and information provided by the DJS case manager,



which will include family functioning and history, mental health history and diagnoses,
medications, physical health and conditions, history of placement in other facilities,
school records; vocational training information, legal history, and substance abuse use
and disorders history.

All the materials in the admission referral packet will be reviewed by The Right Moves
clinicians prior to contact with the youth and his/her parent or guardians and all relevant
information included in the admissions referral packet will be included in the patient®s
record and incorporated into the final Biopsychosocial Assessment. Other evaluations
will be conducted after admission and those results will also be utilized in the
construction of the Treatment Plan and medical record.. This information and data will
include the Nursing Assessment, History and Physical, Psychiatric Evaluation, Individual
Therapist’s interview and assessment, Psychological Evaluation (as clinically
appropriate), an educational assessment, vocational assessment, nutritional assessment, a
substance use disorder assessment, and information that will be gained through
discussions with the referring DJS case manager and the parent or guardian.

The Right Moves clinicians will view the assessment process and ongoing reassessment
as a clinical intervention in itself (Lundrigan, 2001). Our clinicians understand that the
initial and ongoing assessments for each youth are intended to assist the clinicians, DJS
case managers, family members and each patient to be informed regarding the youth’s
emotional stability, social functioning, behavioral control issues, cognitive abilities,
interests and attitudes, mental status, substance abuse use and abuse, and
educational/vocational status and past performance.

Before the final Individual Treatment Plan is formulated, the following information is
assembled in the patient record:

a. Previous and current psychiatric evaluations and diagnoses

b. Medication history and current medications recommended by The Right Moves
psychiatrist

c. Name, address and contact information for the parent/guardian, the DIS case
manager and all other relevant community-based agency personnel

e. History of convictions and current charges

f. Listing of dates and assessment methods employed prior to admission and dates
and assessments conducted by The Right Moves clinicians, including: nursing,
history and physical, substance use disorder assessment, nutritional assessment,
educational assessment, individual counselor/therapist assessment, etc.
g. Medical history
h. Current stressors requiring intervention/management
1. All information gathered through discussions/contacts with DS case managers,
parents and guardians, and previous placement clinicians
f. Historical data regarding a// previous placements
g. A discharge preliminary placement plan, e.g., possibility of return to family,
need for transitional DIS housing post-discharge, etc.

10



The Right Moves will formulate an Individual Treatment Plan that will serve as the
blueprint for the patient’s course of treatment, will establish measurable treatment goals
and objectives, will contain ongoing treatment progress and will contain important
information regarding the ongoing development of a support system for the youth that
will be based in the community to which the patient will return after discharge.

The Individual Treatment Plan summarizes information from all of the assessments and
interviews conducted upon and after admission and includes: Individual strengths that
have been identified by the clinicians, the patient, the parent/guardians and the DJS case
manager and the interventions that will be utilized to build upon those strengths; specific
problem areas and the treatment goals and interventions that address each problem area;
goals for the educational or vocational planning for the patient; special focus groups that
may be needed by the individual patient, e.g., anger management, life skills, etc. The
short and long-term treatment goals established will ¢/ have definitive interventions and
specified time frames for achievement.

In formulating the Treatment Plan, clinicians consider and include information about the
stability of the home situation and the capacity of parents/guardians to provide effective
supervision; the perception and feelings of the parents/guardians; and the ability or lack
thereof of parents/guardians to support the patient upon discharge. Consideration is
given to where the patient will be placed after discharge from the day of admission. The
Right Moves and the multidisciplinary clinical team members work together with the
parents/guardian and the DJS case managers to determine and find an appropriate and
safe living situation in the community within a sixty to ninety day period before the
patient is discharged.

The Treatment Plan contains all progress notes, individual, group and family counseling
documentation, and copies of school/vocational training progress; it is updated every
thirty days. The patient, the clinical team members, parents/guardians and the DJS case
managers will participate in the construction of the Initial Treatment Plan and in all
updated Treatment Plan meetings. Parents/guardians will be transported as needed to
these meetings or will participate by telephone.

The Right Moves patient records, including the Treatment Plan, will conform to the
current CTC medical records system since the current system is in compliance with all
applicable Maryland COMAR regulations and those guidelines and criteria regarding
medical records, confidentiality and documentation set forth by The Joint Commission
and HIPAA. Medical records are kept in locked areas not accessible to patients or
visitors. Fach patient has his own individualized medical record. Clinical guidelines
regarding timeliness of documentation, quality of content, legibility of content, staff and
other signatures, accuracy of dates, etc., are dictated by COMAR regulations, HIPAA
comptliance and Joint Commission requirements. CTC has an ongoing Quality Assurance
program that mcorporates regular audits of the medical records to ensure completeness,
quality and timeliness of all documentation contained therein and will implement the
Quality Assurance program with The Right Moves.

il



) Education.

Seventeen percent (17%) of Maryland youth ages 18-24 have less than a high school
diploma or its equivalent (MSDE, 2008). Lack of a high school diploma, lack of
opportunity for job training or employment, continuing substance use disorders and
untreated mental health problems will lead to difficulties and life issues well beyond the
age of 21 for our target population. All these factors are particularly important when
considering the youth “in the system™ and contribute to the vulnerability of the target
population to ongoing emotional distress, physical health issues, greater risk for ongoing
substance use and other illegal activities, and a potential for a life style of living on public
assistance. The New Directions Academy, the facility’s already existing Special and
General Education non-public school, which is certified by the Maryland State
Department of Education, will provide the general, special education, pre~career and
technology instruction for the patients in The Right Moves program.

The New Directions Academy complies fully with COMAR 13.A.05.01 and COMAR

- 13A.09.09 Educational Programs in Nonpublic Schools and Child Care and Treatment
Facilities. It provides the educational service on site within a few feet of the residential
building. The Academy is able, through cooperative agreements with the patients’ home
schools, to grant credits for academic coursework and to offer certification in its
vocational coursework programs.

“As described in greater detail in the Comprehensive Program Description in Part 1.8B, the
New Directions Academy staff provide career planning, job readiness and preparation
programming, a work study program on grounds, and G.E.D. coursework. For the older
patients in The Right Moves program, the experiences provided through the Academy are
essential, since they must be better equipped once discharged to pursue definitive school,
vocational or work goals that they have set for themselves.

Patients who are college-bound will be assisted in exploration of options and in the
application process. Each year, the New Directions Academy graduates from four to
cight patients who have successfully completed their high school education. The
Academy teachers and principal provide many diverse high-interest activities that
encourage students with repeated histories of school failure to become re-motivated and
finally begin to succeed. High school students and already graduated patients attend
classes for remediation, work readiness and independent living. In the afternoon
sessions, The Right Moves patients in the program will be are eligible for the campus
work program and will receive payment for the work they accomplish. If clinically
appropriate {considering level of functioning and safety to the community), and with the
authorization of the Department of Juvenile Services Resource Coordinator and DJS case
manager, some patients will be able to participate in off-campus college coursework.

(2) Medical Assistance. Each applicant shall meet Maryland Medical
Assistance Program requirements to establish an Early and Periodic
Screening, Diagnosis, and Treatment program, called in Maryland,
“The Marviand Healthy Kids Program”,

12



All vouth admitted to The Right Moves by the Department of Tuvemle Services will
have a Medical Assistance card. Chesapeake Treatment Centers currently meets all
requirements for the establishment and operation of The Maryland Healthy Kids
Program.

(h)  Staff Training. Each applicant shall document that it will:
(i) Provide a minimum of 40 hours of training to new employees prior
to their assuming full job responsibilities;
(ii) For each category of direct service personnel provide the
curriculum for this training and show how the training will help staff
meet the clinical needs of this population; and
(iii) Provide a continuing education program for all categories of
direct-service personnel.

CTC employees who are going to work directly with the patient population receive forty
(40) hours of training prior to assuming full job responsibilities. Newly hired direct care
staff, the Counselor Technicians, receive particularly intensive training since these
caretakers are on duty twenty-four hours per day, seven days per week, and they provide
valuable clinical insight to the professional staff who counsel the patients. Newly hired
counselor technicians work under the guidance and supervision of a well-experienced
counselor technician on different shifts so that they can learn how the program functions
throughout the day, evening and night shifts. Counselor Technicians receive consistent
supervision throughout the month through the ongoing monitoring and guidance of the
Milieu Supervisor and ongoing shift meetings to discuss the patients, areas of concern,
and upcoming trainings.

No Counselor Technician at the CTC facility is allowed to work without supervision for
the first week “on the floor”. All Counselor Technicians receive staff training throughout
the year and are re-trained each year in Fire and Safety, Infection Control, and CPR.
Additionally, direct care staft are trained in an early intervention treatment model, Crisis
Prevention and Intervention (CPI). This training has proven to be highly effective in
helping patients to avoid situations that could result in their losing control and harming
themselves or others. There are ongoing trainings monthly for direct care staff.

All new employees at CTC participate in an orientation run by the Corporate Director of
Human Resources and participate in a refresher orientation course once per year every
year after hire. Professional staff are required to take coursework throughout the year .
and earn CEUs that will ensure their continued professional licensure and certification.
CTC administrative leadership pre-approves and pays for continuing education
coursework for the professionals in its system, including attendance at conferences,
workshops, and educational seminars that will enhance their professional knowledge and
skills.

A tuition reimbursement program has been established for all Tevels of staff at CTC and
all staff at every level in the facility are encouraged to take advantage of that program.



(i) Staffing. -

(i) The applicant shall document that it will provide, either directly or
by agreement, sufficient number of qualified professional, technical,
and supportive staff to provide services to attain or maintain the
highest practicable physical, mental, and psychosocial well-being of
each resident as determined by a2 comprehensive assessment and
individualized treatment and education plan.

(ii) The applicant shall document how the level of staffing will provide
active treatment and fulfill the goals of its proposed treatment
programs and meet the needs of the patients.

An important aspect of staffing at the CTC programs is the professional credentials,
experience and skills of the multidisciplinary team members. Chesapeake Treatment
Centers’ leadership consistently hires those licensed/certified professionals and direct
care staff who demonstrate special skills in working with the particular patient/resident
populations they serve. Ongoing and consistent training ensures effective treatment of
coexisting medical, emotional, and behavioral issues.

The New Directions multidisciplinary team will form the foundation of staffing for the
new program, The Right Moves. The clinical team consists of a Board Certified
Psychiatrist, an Administrator, Nurses, Licensed Professional Counselors and Social
Workers, Certified Substance Abuse Counselors, Special Educators, a licensed Dietician,
Counselor Technicians, a Milieu Supervisor, Activities Specialists, and Bachelor’s and
Master’s Level Counselors, Dietary Team Members, Quality Assurance personnel,
Human Resources staff, Transportation staff and a Director of Environment and physical
plant.

CTC leadership ensures that all professional and paraprofessional staff members have
ongoing training and knowledge of the evidence-based practices and models utilized
throughout the facility and programs, including CBT, MET, ROSC, positive behavioral
interventions and trauma informed care. CTC staff members are proud that the
multiracial and multiethnic make-up of staff throughout its corporate system, including
leadership staff, mirrors the diverse and multiracial patient and family populations. The
unique cross-cultural environment at the facility has cultivated staff members at each
program who can successfully work with urban and rural client populations.

CTC programs have a high staff-to-patient ratio. Direct care staff-to-patient ratio is 1: 5;
the staff-to-patient ratio is higher when the professional staff are included in that ratio,
which is then 1:3.

() State Regulations. Each applicant shall document its compliance, or
state its intention to comply, with all mandated federal, State, and
local health and safety regulations and applicable licensure and
certification standards.
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Chesapeake Treatment Centers and the New Directions facility and all its programs,
including The Right Moves, will comply with all mandated federal, State and local health
and safety regulations and applicable licensure and certification standards. Please see
Attachment E.

(k)  Accreditation and Certification. Each applicant proposing a new
facility shall agree in writing to apply for JCAHO accreditation and
Medicaid certification as soon as permissible after opening and be
jointly licensed as a Special Hospital-Psychiatric Facility (COMAR
10.067.01) and as a Residential Treatment Center (COMAR 10.07.04).

The Chesapeake Treatment Centers, Inc. New Directions facility is already accredited by
the Joint Commission, certified by Medicaid, and licensed as a Residential Treatment
Center, and The Right Moves program would fall under that existing accreditation,
certification and licensure. Please refer to Attachment F and Attachment G.

As pointed out above, the standard which refers to joint licensure as a Residential
Treatment Center and a Special Hospital-Psychiatric Facility is obsolete, because in 2001
CMS issued regulations which established Psychiatric Residential Treatment Facilities
(“PRTFs) as a new category of Medicaid facility eligible for reimbursement under the
Medicaid under-21 benefit. Those regulations define a PRTF as “a facility other than a
hospital, that provides psychiatric services, as described in Subpart D of part 441 of this
chapter, to individuals under the age of 21, in an inpatient setting”. 42 CFR § 483.352
(emphasts added).

() . Criminal Background Investigations. Each applicant shall document
its procedure for:
(i) Complying with Family Law Article, §5-560 through §568,
Annotated Code of Maryland, governing criminal background
investigations for emplovees; and
(ii) Subjecting volunteers to criminal background investigations.

Chesapeake Treatment Centers has included as Attachment H to this document those
policies and procedure from the CTC Department of Human Resources that comply with
relevant sections of the Family Law Article, Annotated Code of Maryland, governing
criminal background investigations for employees. CTC does not have volunteers;
however, if leadership ever establishes a volunteer program, as indicated in those policies
and procedures attached, the volunteers would be subjected to a mandatory criminal
background check.

As indicated in Table L (Work Force Information), the facility is effectively and
adequately staffed to ensure the safety and supervision of all patients at all times. As
shown in Table L, CTC will hire new employees or will make current PRN employvees
full time as the census for the new program builds.
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(4) Certificate of Need Preference Rules.

This application will not be part of a comparative review, so the preferéﬂéé rules do not
apply to the application. Nevertheless, CTC will address the criteria.

CTC has historically treated and will, through the new program, The Right Moves, treat
patients who are assaultive, highly aggressive, emotionally disturbed individuals who
may also exhibit a concomitant substance use disorder (SUD). CTC has treated and will
treat individuals with medical issues, physical disabilities and mild developmental
disabilities.

CTC can provide aftercare services to the older youth placed in The Right Moves
program in many locations throughout Maryland post-discharge through its affiliation
with Maryland Treatment Centers, Inc. (MTC) and MTC’s established outpatient licensed
and Joint Commission accredited mental health clinics and intensive outpatient and
outpatient SUD facilities. The ongoing affiliation with MT'C will allow for a seamless
continuum of care for patients from The Right Moves who live in the areas surrounding -
those treatment programs. For other patients, CTC has developed close working
relationships with Aundreds of community-based agency personnel, private practitioners,
tertiary care hospitals, psychiatric hospitals, group homes, transitional housing settings,
and school and vocational rehabilitation personnel throughout the State.

(5) Certificate of Need Approval Rules.
The Approval Rules are obsolete and inapplicable to this project.
The federal regulation cited (42 CFR 441.1152) no longer exists.

The requirement that the facility be dually licensed as a residential treatment center and
special hospital-psychiatric facility is no longer feasible, as explained above.

The minimum unit size of 12 beds was presumably related to the idea of converting
excess capacity located in existing special psychiatric hospitals to RTC beds, probably to
ensure that such units would have a “critical mass” of services and staff. In the current
application there are no such issues, because The Righr Moves will be part of the 29-bed
New Directions facility, which will ensure that it has access to the necessary services,
staff, and other resources.

(6) Performance Requirements.

The Performance Requirements are, we believe, obsolete and not enforced by the
Commission.

However, if the Commission determines that it wishes to impose such performance

requirements, Chesapeake Treatment Centers will fulfill all of the relevant requirements
set forth by the Commission after the Certificate of Need is granted and will commit to
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monthly reporting all relevant data to the Department of Health and Mental Hygiene, to
the Subcabinet for Children, Youth, and Families and to the Maryland Department of
- Juvenile Services. '

Also, if required by the Commission, CTC will prepare an annual report and send it to the
Commission to address its compliance with this Chapter. The annual report will describe
the measures utilized by the facility to evaluate the patient outcomes for the new program
and will analyze for the Commission the extent to which expected outcomes were
achieved.

10.24.01.08G(3)(c).
Availability of More Cost-Effective Alternatives

As stated above, the proposed non-Al SO RTC beds which are the subject of this
application would be dedicated to transitional youth in the custody of the Maryland
Department of Juvenile Services for whom placement in another Maryland RTC has not

been possible, or for whom clinically suitable services are not available in another
Maryland RTC.

By definition, therefore, there are no more cost-effective alternatives to the proposed
services which would be available at a Marytand RTC. The only other alternative is to
place these patients in facilities outside of Maryland, which is the option now being
utilized. But this is not a more cost-effective alternative to the services proposed in this
application.

Providing the clinical services described in this CON application out-of-state, rather than
at the CTC site, will cause additional expense to DJS. As discussed with DJS officials,
placement at the New Directions site will save the Department funds now utilized for out-
of-state placements. Those funds include travel expenses for DIS case managers and
regional coordinators, including: expensive air fares; long distance phone calls; expenses
and time dedicated to the coordination of long-distance teleconferencing team meetings;
and the difficult inclusion and expenses related to including parents and guardians

- visiting their children.

Most important, as stated by DJS leadership, there are many clinical disadvantages to
treating the target population out-of-state, since consistent face-to-face interviews of the
youth by the DJS case manger are impossible and parental/guardian involvement is
usually minimal. The availability of the CTC program will ensure better treatment and
cost savings to DJS and family members.
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Attachment 9

Part IV. Consistency with General Review
Criteria at COMAR 10.24.01.08G(3) part d,
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Part IV. Consistency with General Review
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independent Auditor's Report

To The Board Of Directors And Stockholder
Chesapeake Treatment Center, Inc. & Subsidiary
3800 Frederick Avenue

Baltimore, Maryland 21229

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Chesapeake Treatment
Center, Inc. & Subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2015 and
2014, and the related consolidated statements of operations and changes in retained earnings, and
cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consoclidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

7 Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards reguire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

hertzbach.com

Baltimore 800 Red Brook Boulevard E

Greater Washingtorn, D.C. Suite 300 ! BUILDING RELATIONSHIPS [ DELIVERING SHCCESS®
Owings Mills, Maryland 21117 Members:

Morthern Virginia A410.363.3200 American Institute of Certified Publfic Arcountants
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Chesapeake Treatment Center, Inc. & Subsidiary
Independent Auditor's Report
Page 2

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate.io provide a basis for
our audit opinion. ) :

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Chesapeake Treatment Center, inc. & Subsidiary as of June 30, 2015
and 2014, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Supplementary information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinicn on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The supplementary information presented on pages 11 and 12, which is the
responsibility of management, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part
of the consolidated financial statements. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and, accordingly, we do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Hertzback & Company, PA.

Owings Milts, Maryland
December 16, 2015
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Chesapeake Treatment Center, Inc. & Subsidiary
Consolidated Balance Sheets

June 30, 2015 2014
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS :
Cash $ 317,567 $ 340,255
Accounts Receivable, Net 550,435 1,329,183
Prepaid Expenses 440 2,314
Due From Third-Party Payer, Current Portion - 244,648
Due From Related Parties 549,407 75712
Total Current Assets 1,417 849 1,892,112
Property And Equipment, Net 80,647 85,961
OTHER ASSETS
Deferred Tax Asset 142,357 117,302
Due From Third-Party Payer, Net Of Current Portion 2.782.045 3,064,179
Total Other Assets 2,924 402 3,181,481
Total Assets $ 4431898 $ 5259554

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current Maturities Of Long-Term Debt $ 58,927 $ 63,738
Accounts Payable And Accrued Expenses 568,392 869,253
Advance From State 246,128 246,128
Due To Third-Party Payer, Current Portion 31,002 -
Deferred Revenue _ - 13,224
Due To Related Parties , 207,523 437,040
Income Taxes Payable - 10,383

Total Current Liabilities 1,112,972 1,639,766

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Due To Third-Party Payer, Net Of Current Portion 2,210,791 2,255,738
Long-Term Debt, Net Of Current Maturities 110,963 169,838

Total Long-Term Liabilities _ 2,321,754 2,425,576

Total Liabilities 3,434,726 4,085,342

STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY
Commoen Stock, $.01 Par Value, 5,000 Shares Authorized,

1,000 Shares Issued And Outstanding - 10 10
Additional Paid-In Capital 990 990
Retained Eamings 996,172 1,193,212

Tota! Stockholder's Equity 997,172 1,194,212

Total Liabilities And Stockholder's Equity $ 4431898 $ 5260554

See Accompanying Notes To The Consolidated Financial Siatements



Chesapeake Treatment Center, Inc. & Subsidiary
Consolidated Statements of Operations And Changes In Retained Earnings

e

For The Years Ended June 30, 2015 2014
Operating Revenue:

Net Patient Revenue $ 3,767,534 $ 5182139
Operating Expenses: .

' Salaries And Wages 2,121,506 2,486,116
Fringe Benefits 370,064 424 228
Supplies 144,074 214,289
Contractual Services 792,954 1,174,835
Rent, Utilities, And Other 437,425 474,321
Depreciation 25,954 18,212
interest 5,876 9,559
Bad Debt Expense 84 797 73,885

Total Operating Expenses 3,886,754 4 875 446

{Loss} Income From Continued Operations Before Income Taxes (219,220) 306,693

Provision For Income Tax Benefit (Expense} 33,332 (185.775)

{Loss) Income From Continued Operations (185,888) 200,918
Loss From Discontinued Operations (Net Of income Tax

{Expense) Benefit Of $29,163 And $3,985, Respectively) (11,152} (5,443}

Net (Loss) Income {197,040) 195,475

Retained Earnings, Beginning Of Year 1,183,212 997,737

Retained Eamings, End Of Year 3 996172 _$ 1193212

See Accompanying Notes Te The Consolidated Financial Statements



Chesapeake Treatment Center, Inc. & Subsidiary
Consolidated Statements Of Cash Flows

For The Years Ended June 30, 2015 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net (Loss) Income $ (197,040) 195,475
Adjustments To Reconcile Net (Loss) Income To Net Cash
Provided By Operating Activities _
Depreciation 29,954 18,212
Deferred Income Tax Expense (25,055) 77,508
Provision For Bad Debts 84,797 73,885
(Increase) Decrease In Operating Assets:
Accounts Receivable 653,951 27,238
Prepaid Expenses : 1,874 20,025
Due From Third-Party Payer 528,782 249,656
Increase (Decrease) In Operating Liabilities:
Accounts Payable And Accrued Expenses ' (299,861) 145 534
Deferred Revenue ’ (13,224) 13,224
Due From Related Parties, Net (703,212) (489,673}
Due To Third-Party Payer (13,945) 75,218
income Taxes Payable . {(10,383) (5.481)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 74,638 400,821
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases Of Property And Equipment (33,640} {59.481)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (33,640} {52,481)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANGING ACTIVITIES _
Principal Payments On Long-Term Debt (63,686) (71,888)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (63,686) (71,888)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH {22,688) 269,452
CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR . , 340,255 70,803
CASH, END OF YEAR . _ 3 317,567 340,255
Supplemental Disclosure Of Cash Flow .lnformation:
Cash Paid During The Year For Interest $ 5 978 9,559
Cash Paid During The Year For Income Taxes 3 - 111,256

See Accompanying Notes To The Censolidated Financial Statements



Chesapeake Treatment Center, Inc. & Subsidiary
Notes To Consclidated Financial Statements

For The Years Ended June 30, 2015 And 2014

1.

NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PCLICIES

NATURE OF BUSINESS — Chesapeake Treatment Center, Inc. {CTC) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Florida
investment Group, LP. CTC was incorporated on February 17, 1988. On April 1, 1999, CTC began operating
and managing a sex offender treatment program at the Charles H. Hickey, Jr. School. CTC is located in
Baltimore, Maryiand.

Chesapeake Youth Center, Inc. (CYC) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CTC and was incorporated on
November 29, 1988 and began operations in August 1989. The operations of CYC were sold as of
September 11, 2006, and CYC discontinued operations on that date. CYC provided long-term hospital care
for emotlonally disturbed adolescents, an acute psychiatric services program, and a psychlatnc residential
treatment program. CYC was located on the Eastern Shore of Maryland.

-PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION - The consolidated financia! statements include the accounts of

Chesapeake Treatment Center, Inc., and Chesapeake Youth Center, Inc. (together “the Company™). All
significant intercompany transactions were eliminated in consolidation.

METHOD OF ACCOUNTING — The censolidated financial statements of the Company are prepared on the
accrual basis of accounting. Consequently, revenue is recognized when eamed and expenses are recognized
when the obligations are incurred.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an
original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

USE QF ESTIMATES — The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting
principies generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND REVENUE RECOGNITION — CTC has a four-year Per Diem Contract with
the Department of Juvenile Services (DJS) to provide residential and educational services through June 30,
2015. The majority of referrals under this contract are Medicaid eligible and residential services are
reimbursed by the State of Maryland Medicaid Program on a cost basis subject to annual ceilings. CTC
receives an interim per diem rate during the year and ultimately settles final payment based upon an audited
Medicaid cost report filing. For Medicaid ineligible referrals, CTC is reimbursed at per diem rates established
by the DJS Per Diem Contract. Subsequent to year end, the Company entered into a new contract through
June 30, 2016 {see Note 10).

Educational rates are established prospectively by the Maryland State Department of Education (MSDE)
based upon an approved operating budget. Educational services are reimbursed at these established rates
under the DJS Per Diem Contract or by the student’s local school district as applicabie.

CYC income or loss from discontinued operations is comprised primarily from third-party settlements of
services provided when CYC was an operating entity.

The Company uses the aliowance method for estimating uncoliectible accounts, basing the allowance on a
periodic review of the receivable balances. The majority of the receivables are due from the State of

Maryland. As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, the allowance for uncollectible accounts amounted to $56,000.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - Acquisitions of property and equipment in excess of $5,000 are capitalized.
Property and equipment is recorded at cost. For financial reporting purposes, depreciation IS provided on a
straighi-ine basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets.




Chesapeake Treatment Center, Inc. & Subsidiary
Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

A

For The Years Ended June 30, 2015 And 2014

1.

NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICAN.T ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTIRUED)

INCOME TAXES - Income taxes are provided for the tax effects of fransactions reporied in the consolidated
financial statements and consist of taxes currently payable plus deferred taxes. Deferred taxes are
recognized for differences between the basis of assets and liabilities for financial statement and income tax
purposes. Deferred taxes are also recognized for net operating loss carryforwards.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES - Employees of the Company are entitled to paid time off depending on job
classification, length of service, and other factors. The Company has accrued $136,238 and $137,256 for paid
time off as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively,

DUE FROM / TO THIRD-PARTY PAYER

The Company is required to file Medicaid cost reports annually. These cost reports are subject to audit by
Medicaid and often result in settlements due to or from Medicaid.

The Company estimates its settlements on a current basis and reflects this estimate as amounts due from or
to third-party payer in the consolidated financial statements. Future settlements resulting from Medicaid audits
are reflected in the pericd any non-appealed settlement or an appealed settlement occurs. Due from Medicaid
as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 amounted to $2,782,045 and $3,308,697, respectively. Due to Medicaid as of
June 30, 2015 and 2014 amounted to $2,241,793 and $2,255,738, respectively.

Estimated settlements are subject to verification and final setilement. Any differences between the estimate
and amounts actually paid or received wilt be recorded in the period they are paid or received.

The Company's contract with the Department of Juvenile Services (DJS) states that the Company is
permitied to transfer 10% of program profits to retained eamings. Any profits in excess of 10% are to be
refunded to DJS. The Company has estimated a liability due to DJS in the amount of $-0- and $75,088 as of
June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment cohsists of the following as of June 30, 2015 and 2014

2015 2014
Furniture And Equipment $ 276,758 % 272,158
Vehicles 120,213 120,139
Leasehold Improvements 15,598 . 10,5588
Total Cost ' 412,569 402,885
Less: Accumulated Depreciation _ 322,922 316,934
Property And Equipment, Net $ 89647 % 85,961

Fulty depreciated property and equipment in the amount of $23,966 and $24,954 was disposed of during the
years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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Chesapeake Treatment Center, Inc. & Subsidiary
Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

For The Years Ended June 30, 2015 And 2014

4. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The amounts due from / to related parties are from working capital advances and payment of shared
expenses. Terms for repayment are informal and the balances are non-interest bearing. The parties are
related through common ownership.

The Company shares staff and dietary services with a related party, and has recognized $645,271 and
$820.512 related to these services in contractual services on the consolidated statements of operations and
changes in retained eamnings for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Also inciuded on the
consolidated statements of operations and changes in retained eamnings for the years ended June 30, 2015
and 2014 is salary expense for officers in the amount of $60,000 and $120,000, respectively.

The Company has related party payables included in accounts payable and accrued expenses on the
consolidated balance sheets in the amount of $157,128 and $183,528 due {o officers as of June 30, 2015 and
2014, respectwely

5. RETIREMENT PLAN
The Company is a participant in the Maryland Treatment Centers, Inc. 401(k) Plan, a single-employer plan
sponsored by an affiliated company. Participants in this plan can defer up to 80% of their salary on a pretax.
basis, up to the amounts allowable under current income tax regulations. All full time employees who have
one-year of service and are age twenty-one or older are eligible to participate in the sponsored plan. The
Company contributes to the plan on a discretionary basis. The Company did not contribute to the plan for the
years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014.

6. LLONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt consists of the following as of June 30, 2015 and 2014:

2015 , 2014

Note payable to National Bank of Cambridge in 53 monthly
installments of $4,908, including principal and interest at
2.65% per annum, due on April 18, 2018, secured by a

refated party. $ 160,627 $ 214,494

Note payable to National Bark of Cambridge in 72 monthly
instaliments of $313, including principal and interest at

6.00% per annum, due on January 6, 2018, secured by a ‘ ‘
vehicle. , 8,759 11,837

Note payable to National Bank of Cambridge in 48 monthly
instalments of $257, including principal and interest at

10.00% per annum, due on August 8, 2015, secured by a :
vehidie. ' 504 3,378

Note payable fo National Bank of Cambridge in 60 monthly
installments of $491, including principal and interest at
8.50% per annum, due on February 15, 2015, secured by

a vehicle. This note was paid in full as of June 30, 2015, - 3,867
Total 169,890 233,576
Less: Current Maturities 58,027 63,738
Long-Term Debt, Noncurrent 3 110,963 $ ’169,838
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Chesapeake Treatment Center, Inc. & Subsidiary
Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

For The Years Ended June 30, 2015 And 2014

6. LONG-TERM DEBT {Continued}
Aggregate annual maturities of the long-term debt as of June 30, 2015, are as follows:

Years Ending June 30,

2016 $ 58927
2017 59,797
2018 51,166

$ 169,890

7. INCOME TAXES

Provision for income taxes consists of the following for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014:

2015 2014

Continued Operations
Current Expense

State $ - 3 (24,282)
Deferred Benefit (Expense)

Federal 27,424 (81,493)

‘State 5,908 -

33,332 (81,493)

$ 33,332 $ (105,775)

Discontinued Operations

Deferred Benefit (Expense)

Federal $ 97y $ 3,985
State (30,140} -
8 (29,163} 3 3,985

The Company's total deferred tax assets at June 30, 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

2015 2014
Current Noncurrent Current Noncurrent

Net Operating Loss Carryforwards  § - $ 142,357 $ - $ 117,302

At June 30, 2015, the Company has net operating loss carry forwards totaling $288,928 that may be offset
against future taxable income. If not used, the carry forwards will expire during various years through 2035.

8. ADVANCE FROM STATE
The Company has received non-interest bearing advances from the State of Maryland as payment towards

future claims. The Siate periodically withholds claims as a repayment of the advances. The advances are
due on demand. As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, outstanding advances from the State amounted to $246,128.

12



Chesapeake Treatment Center, Inc. & Subsidiary
Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

For The Years Ended June 30, 2015 And 2014

9.

10.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Company maintains cash balances at one financial institution. These balances may, from time to fime,
exceed amounts insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. At June 30, 2015, cash balances
exceeded the insured amounts by $197,212.

The Company’s net patient revenue and accounts receivables were derived from the Maryland Medicaid
program and DJS. If these programs were modified, reducing or efiminating these revenues, the Company’s
finances could be materially adversely affected. Management believes the concentration of credit risk is
minimal due to the nature of the receivables and revenue and the history of this type of program.

The Company’s net patient revenue from Medicaid and DJS for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014
consisted of.

2015 2014 _
Medicaid $ 2,634,201 69.9 % 3 2,896,214 559 %
DJS 1,061,655 28.2 2,129,111 411

$ 3,695,856 98.1 % $ 5,025,325 87.0 %

The Company’s gross accounts receivables as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 consisted of:

2015 2014
Medicaid $ 333837 550 % $ 720,505 520 %
DJS 272598 450 664,678  48.0

3 606,435 100.0 % $ 1,385,183 1000 %

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

During August 2015, the Company entered into a new contract with Maryland Department of Juvenile
Services through June 30, 2016 (see Note 1).

Management has evaluated events and transactions subsequent to the consolidated balance sheet date for
potential recognition or disclosure through the independent auditor's report date, the date the consolidated
financial statements were available to be issued. Except as noted above, there were no events that required
recognition or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements.

13
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Chesapeake Treatment Center, Inc. & Subsidiary
Schedule Of Program To Actual Funds Received

(Unaudited) )
For The Year Ended June 30, 2018
{Other DJS
RTC Services (1) Education Outpatient Shared Total

Salaries $ 1,539,726 ) - § 240,769 5 65,271 $ 275740 $ 2,121,506
Fringe Benefits 268,581 - 41,898 11,386 48,099 370,064
Contractual Services 311,318 16,744 142,237 25,874 326,780 792,954
Supplies 87,424 - 12,110 45 44,495 144,074
Depreciation And Amortization - - - - 29,954 29,954
Rent, Utilities, And Other 63,288 - 56,808 11,271 306,062 437,429
interest - - - - 5955 5,956

2,270,338 16,744 483,922 113,847 1,037,086 3,901,937
Allocation QF Shared Costs 646,985 - 390,104 - (1,037,086) .
Related Services Revenues - ~ (25,844) - - (25,844)
Total Costs Al Patients/Students $ 2,817,323 3 16,744 $ 828,179 $ 113,847 5 - $ 3,876,093
Total Days 6,236 3,760
Cost Per Day $ 467.82 $ 22026
Total DJS Days 328 3,620
Totat DJS Cost $ 153,445 $ 797,341
Other DJS Services (1) 5 18,744 3 -
Billed To DJS $ 168,920 $§ 793,323
Revenues in Excess Of Costs $ (1,269) $ (4,018}
Transfer To Retained Earnings Per Confract _§ - 5 -
Liahility At June 30, 2015 $ - $ -

{1} Pediatrician, lab, pharmacy, and other amounts not reimbursed by Medicaid.

See Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report
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Chesapeake Treatment Center, Inc. & Subsidiary
Schedule Of Actual Costs To MSDE Budget

{(Unaudited)

For The Year Ended June 30, 2015

DIRECT COSTS

INDIRECT COSTS

Approved Modified Final Percentage  Approved Final Percentage
Budget Category Budget Budget Expenditures  Variance  Variance Budget Expenditures Variance  Varlance
Salaries:
Adminisirative/Executive $ 58000 % 58000 § 77687 § 19687 0.34 3 - % - % - -
School Administrative 112,250 96,099 67,106 (28,993) (0.25) - - - -
Direct Classroom 330,613 330,813 126,048 (204,565) {0.62) - - - -
Related Services 28,400 26,400 37,461 11,061 0.42 - - - -
General Support 62,450 62,450 36,186 (26,264) {0.42) - - - -
Fringe Benefits 58,971 57,356 29,476 (29,495) (0.50) - - - -
Payroll Taxes &7,817 65,960 45,754 {22,666} (0.33} - - - -
Professional Fees 90,800 99,800 151,735 60,835 0.67 53,750 81,692 27,842 0.52
Supplies And Non-Capital Equipment 16,507 18,507 21,879 5,372 0.33 - - - -
Phone/Fax/Iniernet 4,900 4,900 7.238 2,338 0.48 - - - -
Postage 500 500 399 {101) {0.20) - - - -
Qocupancy 84,000 54 623 139,941 55,541 057 - - - -
Rental/Maintenance Of Equipment 3,200 3,200 5516 2,316 072 - - - -
Public Relations 1,500 1,500 272 (1,228) (0.82) - - - -
Publications 500 500 - (500) (1.00) - - - -
Transportation 9,600 9,600 1,737 (7.863) {0.82) - - - -
Educational Experiences 3,000 3,000 1,856 {1,144) {0.38) - - - -
Dues/Licenses 4,900 4,900 8,535 3,635 0.74 - - . -
Depreciation 7,200 7,200 13,508 §,308 0.88 - - - -
Total $ 943108 $ 943108 § 772,331 % (154,626) (0.168) § 53,750 § B1,692 § 27942 0.52
Total Direct And Indirect Costs $ 996,858 $ 854,023 § (142,835)
Related Service Revenues $ {47,500) $ (25844) § 218656
Net Tuition Costs § 940,358 $ 828178 § (121179) (013
Student Days 4,332 3,760 {572} (0.13)
Daily Cost $ 219.15 $ 22026 § 1.11
TUITION REVENUE BY SOURCE
Revenue
Student Tuition Tuition in Excess
Payor Source Days Revenue Cost Of Costs
Per Diem § 21669 § 220.26
DJS 3,620 $ 784418 § 797,341 § (12,923)
BOE 140 30,337 30,836 {499}
Total 3,760 § 814755 § 828177 § {13.422)

Seg Accompanying Independent Auditor's Report
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ELEMENTS OF STAFF DEVELOPMENT

>

>

>
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>

New Emlployee Orientation

New Hire In-Service Training

Annual Orientation

Staff Competency Plan

_Elements of Annual Training — Counselors and Counselor Techs

Manager/Sﬂpervisor Training



MARYLAND TREATMENT CENTERS, INC.
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL

SECTION: HUMAN RESOURCES (HR)

44

Policy No.: HR- B08 Effective Data: April 1, 2004
Subject: New Employee Orientation Reviewed andfor  August 5, 1993
Revised: December 6, 2001

December 26, 2007
November 26, 2010

Approved By: N. Cralg Cutter
Corporate Director, Human Resources

Marc J. Fishman, M.D.
Chairperson, Board of Directors

Policy:

All new Marylahd Treatment Centers, Inc. (MTC) employses will complete a comprehensive program of general
and departmental orientation within 30 days of hire.

New employee orientation is intended to provide all new employees with an overview of MTC that includes its
mission and organizational structure, knowledge about procedural and regulatory Tequirements and an
* understanding of performance expectations.

Procedure:
A. General New Hire Orientation is scheduled ance a month. Wherever possible, a new employee's start
date will closely coincide with a scheduled General Orientation.
B. General Orientation consists of one to three days of information and training.
» One day is devoted to organizational, procedural and regulatory subjects and is mandatory for all
empioyees.

s One day is devoted fo iraining in Behavior Management and is mandatory for all employees providing
direct patient care in adolescent facilities.

» One day is devoted to training in CPR and is mandatory for all direct patient care employees who do
not have current CPR certification.

C. Department Crientation is a required for all émployees and is completed during the first thirty days after
hire.
B. General Orientation and Department Orientation checklists are completed by the employee and trainers

and are retained in the employee's persannel file.

Attached is a Requirements Checklist that defines general employee documentation and fraining required prior o
hire and at increments during the first year of employment.

HR- B03 2

Effective 04-01-04 New Employee Crientation
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Employee Name SSN - -

Before | First | First | First | Each | Reviewer Initials

Requirement Hire Day* | 30 90 | Year | & Date
Days | Days |, ..
1. Completion of an Employment Application X -
2. Documentation of curreni Professional Licensure
or Certification X
3. Documentation of current CPR Certificaiion if
) required at hire™ X
4. Successful completion of CPR training if required
' post-hire** X
5. Completion of Criminal Background Check X MMB
6. Authorization of Child Protective Services Check MMB
7. Completion of State Police Finger Print Forms MMB
MME
8. Completion of a Drug Scresn MMB :
9. Review and acknowledgement of job description X
10. Completion of professional reference check X

11. Review and acknowledgement of receipt of the
Employee Handbook

12. Policy review / acknowledgement: Harassment,
Confidentiality, Patient Neglect / Abuse, Ethics,
Conflict of Interest, Siaff Rights

13. Completion of HIPAA documentation.

14. Review of Employee Benefils

15. Review of payroll and timekeeping procedures

18. Completion of Federal and State tax forms

17. Completion of -9 Form

18. Documentation of current TB test or completion
of a new test / positive reactor form

| XXX XX

19. Completion of hepatitis election form

20. Completion of a Health Status Form by a
licensed practitioner {(MD, NP, PA) MMB

21. Facility tour and fire safety briefing

x>

22, Issus employee ID hadge

23. Issue keys X

24. Instruction in the use of the telephone system X

25. General New Employee Orientation

>

28. Departmental Orientation X

27. Emergency Management Training _ X X

- 28. Infection Control Training

29. Successful completion of MAB or CPI training M

30. Appraisal of job performance

31. Appraisal of core job competencies

x| x| x| E =

32. Appraisal of age-specific competencies {patient
care staff only) X

First Day Requirements may be incorpeorated in Gensral Crientation if it occurs on the first day of employment
**CPR certification must be renewed in order io remain current during employment
=* PPD should be administered and read during the first week of empioyment.

MMB or MME -- Requirement applies only to Mountain Manor Baltimore or Mountain Manor Emmitsburg.

HR-B08

Effective 04-01-04 New EmployeaXQrientation - MTC
Requirements Checklist
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Maryland Treatment Centers, Inc.
Mountain Manor — Baltimore

Certificate of Completion of Continuing Education Hours
Annual Orientation

Employee Name:
Date: .
Topic: HR
e Harassment ¢ Staff Rights
s Diversity ¢ Solicitation
¢ Substance Free Workplace ¢ Inclement Weather
¢ Smoke Free Workplace ¢  Workplace Injury

« Employvee Conduct and Discipline e Problem Solving Procedure

Topic: Organizational Overview

¢ Type of Organization ¢ Personal Appearance

e Mission/ Vision / Values ¢ Child Abuse and Neglect Identification and
Reporting

s Patient Rights ¢ Patient Representative -

¢ Incident Reporis - _ o National Accreditation

s TFthical Boundaries ¢ Therapeutic Hold

» Role of Child Care Staff

Method of Instruction: X  Lecture
Film

Home Study
One-to-One

m

Number of Hours: 2.5

Test: Harassment

Emergency Preparedness & General Safety Practices (Fire & Safety)

HIPPA

Bloodborne Pathogen, Infection Control & Communicable Diseases
Organization Overview ‘

Instructor Date Instructor . Date



Policy No.: HR- FO5 Effective Date: March 15, 2004

Subject: Staff Competency Plan Reviewed andfor Décember 26, 2007
' Revised: November 26, 2010

Approved By: N. Craig Cutter

MARYLAND TREATMENT CENTERS, INC.
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL

SECcTiON: HUMAN RESOURCES (HR)

e

Corporate Director, Human Resources

Marc J. Fishman, M.D.
Chairperson, Board of Directors

Policy:

Maryland Treatment Centers, Inc., (MTC) will provide competency development planning and implementation for
all employses and it mandates assessment on Core Job Competencies and Age-Specific Competencies.

Procedure:;

A

All employees participate in a competency-based assessment process to determine if they demonstraté
and maintain the knowledge and skill appropriate to their position. :

Core Competencies are developed for each position at MTC. Core Competencies are based an essential
elements of the job and are included as a part of the Job Description / Performance Appraisal /
Competency Assessment document.

Age-Specific Competencies are developed for each position at MTC that involves regular patient care and

are included as a part of the Job Description / Performance Appraisat / Competency Assessment
document. ‘

Assessment on Core Competencies and, if appropriate, Age-Specific Competencies occurs during an
employee’s Probationary Period as evidence of initial competence and during each annual appraisal to
demonstrate continuing / developing competence

Attachment
Organizational Plan for Staff Competency

HR-F05 7

Effective 03-15-04 Staff Competency Plan

Page 1 of 1



MARYLAND TREATMENT CENTERS, INC.
ORGANIZATICNAL PLAN FOR STAFF COMPETENCY

A. Scope, Authority and Responstbility

The Board of Directors of Maryland Treatrment Centers, Inc., authorizes the fé?:ility Administrator / Executive
Director to ensure the competency of ail empioyed staff, coniractual staff and interns/students who provide
care and services to patients and their families. The Administrator/Executive Director, in turn, appoints the
facility Human Resources Officer, under the direction of the Corporate Human Resources Director, {0 oversee
the implementation and maintenance of this plan. Ensuring competency of staff according to this pian shaif
be part of the duties and responsibilities of every staff member with supervisory responsibility.

B. Definitions and Areas of Specific Competence

MTC defines staff competency as the successful demonstration by staff of specific skills and/or knowledge
relating to their job and the organization. MTC identifies four areas of skilis and knowledge.

1.

Skills/Knowledge for all Employees
All employees, contractual staff and interns/students are held accountable for knowledge/skills in the
following areas: '

» Organizational mission
Performance improvement
Safe work environment
Incidents/accidents
Safety risks and practices
Security ‘
Hazardous materials and waste
Physical plant emergencies
Behavioral emergencies
Rights and organizational ethics
Confidentiality
nvolvement with patients
infection control

Skills/Knowledge for Professional Staff
» Paosition-specific competencies developed in areas of clinical practice.

e Patient-specific competencies in the areas of adolescent or adult patients, as appropriate, and
mental health.

¢ Selected staff will be compeient in CPR, emergency response (medical and behavioral) and
management of aggressive behavior.

Skills/Know!ledge for Support Staff
* Position-specific competencias in areas of support service.

e Selected siaff will be competent in CPR, and behavioral emergency response.

Skills/Knowledae for Management Staff
« Puosition-specific compeatencies for leadership positions. _
s Managers are held accountable for knowledge/skills in areas such as employee development,
managing empioyee performance, problem-solving and fiscal/budgeat management.

C. Assessment of Competence

1. Method of Assessment
The skills/knowledge of staff are assessed using one or moere of the following methods:
s Supervisor's direct observation
+ Review of written documents or records
e Written or verbal references
+ Discussion with employees
e \Written test
HR- F15 8
Effective 03-15-04 Staff Competency Plan
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MARYLAND TREATMENT CENTERS, INC.
ORGANIZATIONAL PLAN FOR STAFF COMPETENCY

2. Written Assessment Tools
‘The assessment of an employee’ skills/knowledge is recorded using one or more of the following formats:

« Competency checklists

Reference check forms

Primary source verification documents

Qrientation checklists

Performance reviews

Employee self-evaluation forms

3. Seguence of Assessment
Skills/xnowiedge of staif are assessed in the following sequence:
¢ Hiring Process
> Screening of application/resume for minimai qualifications
> Interview
» Verification of references and credentials
» [nitial Orientation
» General orientation to MTC and the facility
» Department and job specific orientation
s Three Month Review of perforrnance and competencies based on job description and
orientation chacklist
e Annual Review
» Assessment of skills/abilities
¥ Performance review
¢ Ongding Supervision/Competency review

4. Data Aggregation and Reporting
The various written assessment tools are aggregated by depariment and reviewed for trends of variance
or deficiency. Aggregation occurs on an annual basis. Any identified trends are addressed in the context
of staff education/training, perfarmance improvement and/or policy and procedure revision. Aggregation
and analys:s is coordinated by the Director of Human Resources in cooperation with each department
and is reviewed by Senior Management.

An Annual Report on Employee Performance and Campetency is prepared by the Director of Human
Resources for review by Senior Management and submission fo the Board of Directors. This report
summarizes the year's performance and competency stalistics and frends, as well as related staff
education/training, performance improvement and policy and procedure revision efforts.

5. Training and Development
When competency review reveals a lack of skillknowledge in a certain area for an individual, the
supervisor will.initiate coaching/training in that area. VWhen aggregate trends are identified, the Director of
Human Resources and the department héad will plan training or other deparimental interventions.

APPROVED: N Crialg Cutter 11/26/10 Mare Fishman 11/26/10
Corporate Director, Cate Chairman Date
Human Resources - Beard of Directors
HR- F05 9
Effective 03-15-04 Staff Competency Plan
: Attachment
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Maryland Treatment Centers, Inc.
ELEMENTS OF ANNUAL TRAINING fyt

- For

L

COUNSELORS AND COUNSELOR TECHS

~ Orientation / Annual Policy Review

CPR

Behavior Management

Intensive Tech Training

Staff Meetings on focus topics identified by
line or supervisory staff — Examples—Ethics

Confidentiality, Medication Questions

Total

6 hours
3 hours
8 hours

12 hours

11 hours

40 hours

16



MANAGER / SUPERVISOR TRAINING
~- OVERVIEW —

® INTRODUGTIONS

B OVERVIEW

E TRAITS OF A GOOD MANAGER

W INTERVIEWING / SELECTION

B NEW HIRE SCREENING

B STAFF QRIENTA‘IV"IONV&TRAiN[NG

".@_COMMUNICATION / COACHING / COUNSELING

B PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL

E DISCIPLINE.

B HARASSMENT /RETALIATION

® FEDERAL ALPHABET SOUP

® INJURIES /’INCIDENT REPORTING
B ATTENDANCE /LEAVE/ PA\(ROLL

‘B REVIEW — NEXT STEPS
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Attachment 12

Certifications and Licenses



Chesapeake Treatment Centers
The New Directions Program

‘Baltimore, MD

wm.m been Accredited by

The Joint Commission

Which has surveyed this organization and found it to meet the requirements for the

Behavioral Health Care Accreditation Program

February 22, 2014

Accreditation is customnarily valid for up to 36 menths.

&&La&bb%@ Orgaization 1D #3429 § &%\F

Rehecdd 1. Patchin, MD PrinReprint Dates 05/19/2015 Mark R Chassin, MD, FACP, MPP, MP11
Chair. Board of Cammisstoners ' President

The Joint Commission is an independent, not-for-profit national body that oversees the safety and quality of health care and
uther sorvices provided in accredited organizations. Information about accredited organizalions may be provided dircctly to
The Joint Commission at i-800-994-6614. Information regarding accreditation and the accredilation performance of
individuat organizations car be obtained through The Joint Commission’s web sile at wwiy.joinlcommission.org,

AMA




MARYLAND
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND MENTAL HYGIENE

OFFICE OF HEALTH CARE QUALITY
. . SPRING GROVE CENTER -
o BLAND BRYANT BUILDING
S /55 WADE AVENUE
CATONSVILLE MARYLAND 21228 ST

' .‘L-it:;eiﬂ__'s_e N003*O77LY :

Tssuedtor ..

B _Chesapeake Treatment Center

jAuthority to operate in th:s State is ﬂranted to the above enmy pursuantto The Health-General Art1c e, Title 19 ’

Section 318 Annotated Code ofMaryland 1982 Edition, and subsequent supplements "and is subJect to any
and i statutory prowsmns includirg all apptzcable rules and reculatzons promulﬂated thereunder ThlS

ptonDi: My 2207

P

Director

Falsification ofa Heense shall subject the perpetrator 1o criminal prosecution and the impositon of civil fines.

"t
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